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CEQO’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

THRERBREEERENTWmE D

To Shareholders:

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | hereby present
the results of China Energy Development Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

Operating Results

During the year, the Group recorded a revenue in the amount of
approximately HK$1,117,000 (2015: HK$7,399,000), representing a
decrease of 85% as compared to the last year. The Group
commenced its money lending segment last year and generated
revenue of HK$1,103,000 which represented 99% of the revenue for
current year. There was a decrease of 99% of revenue generated
from the sales of food and beverages business segment and the
exploration and production segment did not generate any revenue to
the Group.

The Group recorded a loss attributable to the owners of the
Company in the amount of approximately HK$162,688,000,
compared to a loss of approximately HK$1,281,436,000 during last
year. The decrease in loss was mainly due to the decrease of 91%
and 91% of impairment loss of (1) intangible assets and (2)
exploration and evaluation assets of the Group’s exploration and
production segment in the amounts of HK$100,000,000 (2015:
HK$1,057,000,000) and HK$24,000,000 (2015: HK$256,000,000)
respectively. Loss per share attributable to the owners of the
Company was 1.71 HK cents (2015: 13.48 HK cents).

Business Review
Exploration and Production Segment

The Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Totalbuild Investments Group
(Hong Kong) Limited and its subsidiaries (“Totalbuild Investments
Group”) entered into petroleum contract with China National
Petroleum Corporation (“CNPC") for the drilling, exploration,
exploitation and production of oil and/or natural gas within the
specified site located in North Kashi Block, Tarim Basin, Xinjiang, PRC
(the “Petroleum Contract”). The term of the Petroleum Contract is
for a term of 30 years commencing 1 June 2009 (the “Kashi
Project”).

In June 2015, the Group commenced legal actions against the vendor
of Totalbuild Investments Group, as further disclosed in the section
headed “Litigation” in this Annual Report.
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CEO’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
THRARREHEEEENRR DM

Under the Petroleum Contract, the Group shall apply its appropriate
and advanced technology and management expertise and assign its
competent experts to perform exploration, development, and
production of natural gas and/or oil within the site. Under the
Petroleum Contract, in the event that any oil field and/or gas field is
discovered within the site, the development costs shall be borne by
CNPC and the Group in the proportion of 51% and 49%,
respectively.

According to the Petroleum Contract, the exploration period covers 6
years. The managements have devoted much of its resources during
the period in exploration and research studies.

The development period of any oil/gas field will start from the date
of the completion of the Overall Development Program (“ODP").
ODP is a document that is required to be approved by the relevant
government authorities before the development can commence. ODP
comprises a formal development engineering plan, backed up by
survey results and relevant studies, together with a full economic
analysis and time schedule of the development operations. However,
there was delay in finalising the ODP documentation. The production
period should start immediately after obtaining relevant government
approval on ODP.

Despite numerous reminders and enormous efforts of the
management during the period under review, up to the date of this
Annual Report, no GSA has been signed with CNPC, and the ODP
which signifies the transition from exploration period into the
development period of Kashi Project is still preparing. The required
reserve report on the cooperation site has been submitted to PRC
government and waiting for approval. In March 2015, the Group has
issued formal application to CNPC to apply for a two-year extension
of the exploration period of Kashi Project beyond the original
headline of 31 May 2015, as the exploration efforts in the
cooperation site has not been completed. As of the date of this
Annual Report, the Group has not received formal notice of extension
from CNPC. The Group will continue to use its best efforts to make
progress on Kashi Project and will seek legal advice with the view to
upholding its right if and when appropriate.

Since the acquisition of Totalbuild Investments Group, pilot
productions were carried out at the site. 180,930,000 (2015:
142,820,000) cubic meters of gas was extracted during the year. The
information obtained from research and pilot production will form
part of the information to be contained in the application of the
ODP. The gas so produced during the pilot productions has been sold
to the local customers near the site area.
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CEO’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

THRAYBEEEEENR®R DM

As at 31 December 2016, the acquired oil/gas field has approximately
estimated contingent resources of 47.4 (31 December 2015: 47.4)
thousand barrels (“Mbbl”) of oil and 11,544 (2015: 11,633) million
cubic metres (“MMm3") of natural gas (based on Group's 49% net
entitlement interests in Petroleum Contract). These contingent
resources are quantities of oil and gas estimated, to be potentially
recoverable from known accumulations by application of
development projects, but which are not currently considered to be
commercially recoverable due to one or more contingencies. The risks
associated with these contingent resources included the following
matters: (i) there is no definitive GSA or accurate information on
likely future sales prices; (i) the future overall development program
is still to be developed and approved; and (iii) the field is situated in a
remote location.

During the year, the exploration and production segment did not
contribute any revenue and the Group is still negotiating with CNPC
regarding the price term. The segment loss before income tax
was approximately HK$140,456,000 (2015: HK$1,323,202,000).
Impairment losses on intangible assets and exploration and evaluation
assets in the amounts of HK$100,000,000 (2015: HK$1,057,000,000)
and HK$24,000,000 (2015: HK$256,000,000) respectively were
recognised during the current year as the carrying amounts of the
intangible assets and exploration and evaluation assets exceeds the
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount was determined with
reference to the valuation report produced by an independent valuer.
The valuation method used is the income approach. The income
approach is often considered to include the more widely accepted
methods and procedures for achieving a reliable value and this
approach was being adopted consistently in previous years. In
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CEO’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
THRARREHEEEENRR DM

estimating the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit at
both year-end dates, the directors of the Company made certain
assumptions including future gas prices, future production costs and
future production volumes, etc, which are dependent on the business
plan of the oil and gas operations adopted by the Group from time
to time and the continual validity and execution of the Petroleum
Contract. No development and production activity was carried out
under the Petroleum Contract. The pilot-production is not regarded
as production activities as the Petroleum Contract is still in its
exploration stage and ODP is yet to be approved. The results of
operations in exploration and production segment and costs incurred
for exploration and evaluation assets acquisition and exploration
activities are shown as below:

(a) Results of operations in exploration and production
segment

Net sales to customers BEPRIHER

Other income EH A A

Operating expenses KR

Depreciation e

Impairment of intangible assets BZEERE

Impairment of exploration and evaluation &hiF & L5 & ERE
assets

Finance cost BE KA

Results of operations before income tax
expenses

(b)

Costs incurred for exploration and evaluation assets
acquisitions and exploration activities

BIRAAR

Exploration cost
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REBAR R 2 MR EE 2 EHETE - U
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BRETHEREERY - AMEEALTHE
EEERE  ARbmaDERRER A
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RERE - LR RS EE WS kB TRE
BELZKRAHEIMT

BRPTIST SRR & KA

(a) BIEREEDEZEKEEE
2016 2015
—E—-RE —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
785 4405
(16,038) (14,066)
(503) (536)
(100,000) (1,057,000)
(24,000) (256,000)
(700) -
(140,456) (1,323,202)

(b) BIFRRFFIEEEURBRYFZEEL
ZHEAE

2016 2015
—E—-XRE —E—ARF
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FEr
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CEO’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

THRAYBEEEEENR®R DM

Information on oil/gas field and gross contingent
resources

Under the Petroleum Contract, the exploration period covers 6 years
commencing from 1 June 2009. The Group has issued formal
application to CNPC to apply for a two-year extension of the
exploration period of the Petroleum Contract beyond the original
headline of 31 May 2015, as the exploration efforts in the
cooperation site has not been completed. As at 31 December 2016,
the Group has 5 exploration wells and the carrying amounts of the
exploration and evaluation assets were approximately
HK$380,420,000. Since the acquisition of Totalbuild Investments
Group, the exploration activities were carried out under the
Petroleum Contract. During the year, the Group incurred operating
expenses of approximately HK$16,038,000 and 180,930,000 cubic
meters natural gas was extracted through the pilot- production. No
development and production activity was carried out under the
Petroleum Contract, the pilot production is not regarded as
production activities as the Petroleum Contract is still in its
exploration stage and the ODP has yet to be approved.

The reserve evaluation was conducted in accordance with Petroleum
Resources Management system, an internationally recognised reserve
standards and guideline, the details of information were set out in
the Appendix V of Competent Person’s Report to the Company’s
circular dated 3 December 2010. There is no material change of
assumption as compared with previous disclosed in the Competent
Person’s Report, except for the delay in the production schedules due
to the delay in the ODP finalisation and approval and the signing of
the GSA.

The following table summarised the estimates of Group’s 49% net

entitlement interests of the gross contingent resources in the
Petroleum Contract:

As at 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016
Pilot-production activity during the year FRZAETE

At 31 December 2016

RZE—RE+=ZA=+—H

HRARRBEREENER

RIBABRELY  MEBRREF =TT N
FRA—BRAK - AEEEMFREAREER
HEREF  UEBEFEOHENSERBRER
R —ET—-—RERA=1T—HRIEERE EAE
AEREAMBEIERRTEK - RZE—X
FTZA=1T—H T"EEBSEHFRA - &
7RG E ER BREE A 5380,420,00058 7T °
WEHARESBEE  BERIBEAMEQETH
RE®H - RAFE A&EBEBEE XY
16,038,000 BT 2 & LT - A REHABAE
R B £ 180,930,000 37 77 K K SRR © £ 4R &
AHAYETHAEREERY  MAEET
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EF - BBRBREB RS ARERE -

AR EBEOLHEREE R G (BERRA
FERERESDFEL  BAREHNFBHRRA
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P37 SR A ML AE MR B ERIBHEMLERI -
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TERBAAHENTAREERBEEREAED
49% FFT A R At 8T

RZE—RAF+=ZA=+—H
r=—E—X&F—H—H
N

Oil Natural gas
vap: AR
(Mbbl) (MMm3)
(F#) (BEVZHXK)
47 .4 11,633

- (89)

47 .4 11,544
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CEO’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
THRARREHEEEENRR DM

Sales of Food and Beverages Business

During the year, the Group recorded a revenue from the sales of
food and beverages business of approximately HK$14,000 (2015:
HK$5,399,000), representing a decrease of 99% as compared to the
last year. The segment loss before tax expenses was approximately
HK$914,000 (2015: HK$3,857,000). The significant decrease in
revenue during the year was mainly due to the Group's intention to
reduce reliance on the sales of food and beverage. We will continue
to keep track of the economic environment and review the future
allocation of resources as and when required.

Money Lending Business

During the year, the Group continue to generate revenue from the
money lending business operated by its indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary, Zhong Neng Finance Ltd., a licensed money lender under
the Money Lenders Ordinance (Cap. 163, Laws of Hong Kong). As at
31 December 2016, the loan and interest receivables were
approximately HK$26,235,000 (2015: HK$46,803,000). The Group
recorded a revenue from the money lending business of
approximately HK$1,103,000 (2015: HK$2,000,000) and the
segment profit before income tax was approximately HK$1,090,000
(2015: loss before income tax was approximately HK$53,000). The
Group continued to adopt a stringent credit policy to mitigate the
credit risk arising from the money lending business, leading to a
decrease in the revenue of 44% when compared to last year.
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CEO’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

THRAYBEEEEENR®R DM

Auditor’'s modified opinion

Our auditors do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016. Our
auditors are of the view that because of the significance of the
matters described in the “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion” section of
the independent auditor’s report as set out on pages 57 to 62, they
have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial
statements and whether the consolidated financial statements have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance in the areas
below:

1. Scope limitation — intangible assets, exploration
and evaluation assets, and deferred tax assets

Included in the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2016 are intangible assets, exploration and
evaluation assets, and deferred tax assets with carrying
amounts of HK$1,571,240,000, HK$380,420,000 and
HK$86,373,000 respectively (2015: HK$1,792,785,000,
HK$433,832,000 and HK$89,796,000 respectively) (collectively
referred to as the “Assets”). The Assets were principally
acquired by the Group through acquisition of a 100% equity
interest in Totalbuild Investments Group (Hong Kong) Limited
("Totalbuild Investments”) and its subsidiaries (“Totalbuild
Transaction”) during the year ended 31 December 2011 from
a company controlled by Mr. Wang Guoju. As further disclosed
in Notes 16, 17 and 19 to the consolidated financial
statements, the intangible assets represent interests in a
petroleum contract (the “Petroleum Contract”) which was
entered between China Era Energy Power Investment (Hong
Kong) Limited, a subsidiary of Totalbuild Investments, and
CNPC in relation to the drilling, exploration, exploitation and
production of oil and natural gas in North Kashi Block, Tarim
Basin in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"). Exploration
and evaluation assets represents costs directly associated with
exploratory wells (drilling cost and others) that are capitalised
and deferred tax assets related to exploration and evaluation
activities.
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CEO’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
THRARREHEEEENRR DM

As further explained in the “Litigation” section, if Mr. Wang
Guoju is found guilty for improper conduct in obtaining the
Petroleum Contract, the Petroleum Contract may be voidable
and the Group may not be able to exercise its rights under the
Petroleum Contract.

After taking into account the legal opinion on the possible
consequence of the Charge, the Company has commenced
legal proceedings in the Grand Court of the Cayman Islands
(the "Cayman Litigation”) against various parties including
Mr. Wang Guoju and the vendor of the Totalbuild Transaction
(the “Vendor") during the year ended 31 December 2015.

As at the date of this report, there is no adjudication in respect
of the Charge. As a result, our auditors are of the view that
they were unable to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit
evidence concerning (i) the validity of the Petroleum Contract
and therefore as to the ownership of the intangible assets
(which is one of the major assets of the Exploration and
Production segment of the Group); and (ii) whether the
recoverable amounts and impairment provisions of the Assets
were appropriately recognised. Any adjustments to the carrying
amount of the Assets found to be necessary would reduce the
Group's net assets as at 31 December 2016, increase the
Group's loss for the year then ended and affect the related
elements making up the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows.

This scope limitation on the Assets has first arisen in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2015, which was the year in which the
Charge was discovered and the Cayman Litigation was
commenced by the Company. As the trial process of the
Charge is beyond the Company’s control and the Cayman
Litigation has yet to reach the trial and judgment stage, the
Company is not in the position to formulate a plan and timeline
to remove this scope limitation in the forthcoming year. The
Company will inform shareholders and the public by way of
announcement as and when we are aware of any significant
development on the Charge and the Cayman Litigation.
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Save as disclosed herein, there is no progress in the said
Cayman Litigation in 2016. Despite of the Charge, in both the
current year and in 2015, the directors of the Company
consider that the Petroleum Contract will continue to be valid
and will be executed on the basis that the Group has a close
working relationship with CNPC and, up to the date when the
directors approved the consolidated financial statements, there
is no indication from CNPC regarding any potential claim or
questioning the validity of the Petroleum Contract. Based on
the presentation of factual findings by the Company’s directors
and management, the audit committee of the Company is
satisfied with the management’s judgment on this matter.

Uncertainties relating to going concern

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had net current liabilities
of HK$177,727,000 and incurred a loss of HK$162,688,000
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$171,525,000
and HK$1,281,436,000 respectively). In addition, as detailed in
point 1 above, if the Charge results in a conviction and the
Petroleum Contract is voidable, the Group may not be able to
exercise its rights under the Petroleum Contract. These
conditions, both in the current year and in 2015, indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant
doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the directors of the Company
have prepared the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis, the appropriateness of which being largely
dependent upon the outcome of the underlying assumptions,
as detailed in Note 3(b) (ii) to the consolidated financial
statements, which in particular include (i) the Petroleum
Contract continues to be valid; (i) CNPC will pay the proceeds
as agreed in the preliminary gas sharing proposals before 31
December 2017 (the “Proceeds”); (iii) the Group will be able
to successfully persuade the contractors not to demand
repayment of the construction cost payables before the
Company receives the proceeds from the preliminary gas
sharing proposals from CNPC; and (iv) the Group will be able
to raise adequate funding through equity fund raising.
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If Mr. Wang Guoju is found guilty for improper conduct in
obtaining the Petroleum Contract as mentioned in point 1
above, the Petroleum Contract may become voidable.
Ownership of the intangible assets and the recoverable
amounts of the Assets, which are the major assets of the
Exploration and Production segment of the Group, may be in
doubt and the Group may not be able to carry out the business
relating to exploration, development, production and sale of
natural gas in the contract area under the Petroleum Contract.
In addition, the Company has not obtained any written
confirmation that CNPC will pay the Proceeds before 31
December 2017 (2015: before 31 December 2016) and that
the contractors will not insist on payment of the construction
cost payables until the Company receives the Proceeds from
CNPC.

Accordingly, our auditors are of the view that they were unable
to determine whether it is appropriate for the directors to
prepare the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016 on the going concern basis. There
were no alternative audit procedures that our auditors could
perform to satisfy themselves as to whether the going concern
basis is appropriate. Should the going concern basis be
considered inappropriate, adjustments would have to be made
to write down the carrying amounts of the Group's assets to
their realisable values, to provide for any further liabilities which
might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities, respectively.
The effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.

The directors of the Company have also prepared the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015 (the “2015 Consolidated Financial
Statements”) on a going concern basis with underlying
assumptions similar to those adopted in 2016 as stated above.
In the audit of the 2015 Consolidated Financial Statements, our
auditors were also unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence concerning the validity of the Petroleum Contract and
the viability of other assumptions. Together with the matter
detailed in point 1 above, our auditors did not express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2015.
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The uncertainty of going concern has first arisen as the basis of
disclaimer in the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2015, which was the year in
which the Charge was discovered and the Cayman Litigation
was commenced by the Company. Prior to that, the uncertainty
of going concern was addressed as an emphasis of matter in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the financial
years 2012, 2013 and 2014, whereby the Group recorded
shortfalls in current assets below its current liabilities by
HK$9,911,000 (as at 31 December 2012), HK$104,975,000 (as
at 31 December 2013) and HK$133,810,000 (as at 31
December 2014), respectively. During these years, the net
current liabilities of the Group continued to widen as a result of
the delay in the obtaining of ODP and the signing of the GSA,
the delay in distribution of revenue from the Kashi Project and
the continual operating loss of the Group resulted from, inter
alia, the continual spending of expenses of the Group's oil and
gas exploration and production segment. In the financial year
ended 31 December 2014, the speed of deterioration of the
Company’s net current liabilities position was alleviated as a
result of the successful share placement conducted during the
year raising net cash proceeds of HK$160 million.

For the financial years 2015 and 2016, the net current liabilities
of the Group has again escalated to HK$171,525,000 (as at 31
December 2015) and HK$177,727,000 (as at 31 December
2016), respectively. The escalation of the Group’s net current
liabilities was again the result of the delay in the obtaining of
ODP and the signing of the GSA, the delay in distribution of
revenue from the Kashi Project and the continual operating loss
of the Group. As at 31 December 2016, the current liabilities of
the Group, comprising other payables and accruals and amount
due to shareholder, amounted to HK$473,341,000, which
exceeded the cash and bank balances of the Group (of
HK$203,719,000) by HK$269,622,000.
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Since 2015, the Company has taken the following measures to
alleviate its net current liabilities position: (a) attempts were
made by approaching banks and financial institutions to raise
additional funding through bank borrowings, bond issues and/
or equity issuances; and (b) re-negotiation with the Group's
construction creditors with the view to extending the
repayment deadlines of the due and overdue payables. While
the creditor re-negotiation process is still ongoing, none of the
fund-raising attempts made by the Company eventually
materialized. In addition, the fund-raising capabilities of the
Company was materially prejudiced by the discovery of the
Charge against Mr. Wang Guoju (the guarantor of the vendor
for the Totalbuild Transaction) for allegedly undertaking illegal
operations and improper conduct in obtaining the Petroleum
Contract, which was subsequently sold to the Group under the
Totalbuild Transaction. As the trial process of the Charge is
beyond the Company’s control and the Cayman Litigation has
yet to reach the trial and judgment stage, the Company is not
in the position to formulate a plan and timeline to eliminate or
alleviate the cash flow limitation and the uncertainty of going
concern in the forthcoming year. The Company will inform
shareholders and the public by way of announcement as and
when we are aware of any significant development on the
Charge and the Cayman Litigation.
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In the light of the delay of the Kashi Project, the directors and
management of the Company have endeavoured to diversify
the Company’s business and income stream to avoid the
reliance on the Kashi Project. In 2015, the Group successfully
obtained a money-lender license in an effort to diversifying into
the financial sector. However, our expansion plans were greatly
affected by the limited cash position, as the remaining cash of
the Group were set aside for the repayment of our current
liabilities. As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
2 June 2016, the Company was engaged in preliminary
negotiation with independent financial institutions with the
view to exploring possible fund-raising exercises of the
Company, involving possibly the issue of new shares of the
Company (the “Possible Equity Fund-raising”). In
compliance with the terms attached to the injunction order
granted by the Cayman Court (“Injunction Order”) in respect
of the shares and underlying shares of the convertible bonds
held by UK Prolific (details of which are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 25 June and 18 August
2015), in order for the Company to proceed with the Possible
Equity Fund-raising (the “Leave Application”), the Company
needs to obtain the leave of the Cayman Court to consent to
the Possible Equity Fund-raising. The Company has yet to
receive the consent for the Leave Application.

The management of the Company are of the view that an
equity fund raising of HK$400 million or above would be
sufficient for the Group to repay its debtors and further expand
the business of the Group. In the meantime, the directors and
management of the Company will continue to explore
alternative funding sources by continuing to approach banks
and financial institutions to raise additional capital by way of
debt or equity fund-raising. The Company will inform
shareholders and the public by way of announcement as and
when we make any progress on any of these fund-raising
efforts. Based on the presentation of factual findings by the
Company'’s directors and management, the audit committee of
the Company is satisfied with the management’s judgment on
this matter.
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Financial Review
Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no outstanding interest
bearing borrowings (2015: Nil). The cash and cash equivalents of the
Group were approximately HK$203,719,000 (2015:
HK$204,278,000). The Group's current ratio (current assets to
current liabilities) was approximately 62.5% (2015: 66.2%). The ratio
of total liabilities to total assets of the Group was approximately
22.7% (2015: 21.1%).

As at 31 December 2016, the Company has outstanding convertible
notes in the principal amount of HK$679,670,000, which do not
carry any interest, are due in 2041 and carry right to convert into
ordinary shares of the Company. A maximum number of
4,045,654,761 shares may be allotted and issued upon exercise of
the conversion rights attached to the convertible notes in full. During
the year, no convertible note was converted to ordinary shares of the
Company.

In June 2015, the Group commenced legal actions against the
holder(s) of the convertible notes, as further disclosed in the section
headed “Litigation” in this Annual Report.

Charge of Assets

None of the assets of the Group were pledged as security for any
banking facilities and borrowings as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

Exchange Exposure

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and PRC and the exposure
in exchange rate risks mainly arises from fluctuations in the HK dollar
and Renminbi exchange rates. Exchange rate fluctuations and market
trends have always been the concern of the Group. The policy of the
Group for its operating entities operates in their corresponding local
currencies to minimize currency risks. The Group, after reviewing its
exposure for the time being, did not enter into any derivative
contracts aimed at minimizing exchange rate risks during the year.
However, management will monitor foreign currency exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure if
necessary.
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Capital Commitments

The Group had capital commitments of approximately
HK$131,677,000 and HK$115,500,000 as at 31 December 2016
(2015: HK$141,254,000 and HK$123,900,000) in respect of
exploration and evaluation expenditure and capital contributions in a
subsidiary respectively.

Litigation

Reference is made to the announcements (the “Announcements”)
of Company dated 7 June 2015, 17 June 2015, 25 June 2015, 29
June 2015 and 18 August 2015 in relation to, inter alia, the
commencement of a litigation in relation to the Totalbuild
Transaction against the Vendor, Mr. Wang Guoju, UK Prolific
Petroleum Group Company Limited “UK Prolific”, Mr. Wang Hanning
and other parties (the "Defendants”).

As disclosed in the Announcements, the Board was informed that
Mr. Wang Guoju was formally charged by prosecution authorities in
China for (inter alia) undertaking illegal operations (the “Charge”),
possibly involving allegations about improper conduct in obtaining of
the Petroleum Contract. After taking legal advice as to the remedies
which should be sought by the Company to uphold its right, on 17
June 2015 (Cayman Islands time), the Company commenced legal
proceedings in the Grand Court of the Cayman Islands (the
“Litigation”) against various parties including Totalbuild Investments
Holdings Group Limited (the Vendor of Totalbuild Transaction), Mr.
Wang Guoju (the guarantor of the Vendor), UK Prolific (the allottee
of Tranche | Convertible Bonds as nominated by the Vendor) and Mr.
Wang Hanning (owner and controller of UK Prolific), whereby the
Company seeks, inter alia, a declaration that the acquisition
agreement in relation to Totalbuild Transaction (the “Totalbuild
Agreement”) is void or, alternatively, the Company is allowed to
rescind the Totalbuild Agreement, and other remedies including
damages, on the basis that, inter alia, the Charge casts serious doubt
over: (a) the warranties given by the Vendor and Mr. Wang Guoju in
relation to the Petroleum Contract upon which the Company relied
in entering into the Totalbuild Transaction; and (b) the validity of the
Totalbuild Agreement by which the Company issued Tranche |
Convertible Bonds to UK Prolific, and as a consequence UK Prolific’s
entitlement to any shareholding in the Company.
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On 23 June 2015 (Cayman Islands time), upon the Company’s
application, the Grand Court of the Cayman Islands made an
injunction order (the “Injunction Order”) that until the
determination of the Company’s Writ of Summons relating to the
Litigation or further order of the Court (inter alia):

1. The Defendants must not (a) dispose of, transfer, deal in, or
diminish the value of, or (b) exercise any rights or powers
(including but not limited to voting rights in general and/or
extraordinary meetings) in respect of, and/or (c) enter into any
agreement to effect the above, in relation to 1.86 billion issued
shares in the Company, being part of the consideration for the
Totalbuild Agreement; and

2. The Defendants must not complete and/or procure the
conversion of the convertible notes representing
13,366,190,476 underlying shares in the Company, being part
of the consideration for the Totalbuild Agreement.

On 13 August 2015 (Cayman Islands time), upon the Company’s
undertaking not to allot, issue or deal with additional shares or to
make or grant offers, agreements or options in relation to the
issuance of any additional shares or securities (including any derivative
interests in the shares) without leave of the Court until the conclusion
of the present trial relating to the Litigation or further order, the
Grand Court of the Cayman Islands made an order that the
Injunction Order be continued until conclusion of the present trial
relating to the Litigation or further order, and the Company’s costs
of and occasioned by UK Prolific’'s Summons be paid by UK Prolific
on the standard basis.

As the Litigation has yet to reach the trial stage, the Board is not in
the position to assess the possible impact on the Group's oil and gas
operation and financial position. Taking into account the legal
opinion, the Board consider that the Petroleum Contract may be
voidable and the Group may not be able to exercise its right under
the Petroleum Contract if Mr. Wang Guoju is charged improper
conduct in obtaining the Petroleum Contract which might render the
contract voidable. The Board will update shareholders and the public
on any material development of the Litigation by way of
announcement if and when appropriate.
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CEO’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
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Contingent Liabilities

Save as any contingent liabilities which may arise from any of the
litigations disclosed in this Annual Report, the Group had no other
material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2016.

Employee Information

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a total workforce of 18
(2015: 28). The Group remunerates its employees based on their
work performance, working experiences, professional qualifications
and the prevailing market practice.

Prospects
Natural Resource Industries

As the Charge in relation to the Kashi Project has yet to reach the
judgment stage, the Company will continue to closely monitor the
status of the project and do what we can to uphold and protect the
Company'’s best interest, our investment costs and our expectation
on the return of the project.

Sales of Food and Beverages Business

The management has taken a cautious approach to manage the
operations of the food and beverages segment. The Group will
evaluate the value and performance of this segment from time to
time, and continue to keep track of the economic environment and
review the future allocation of resources as and when required.

Money Lending Business

The Group will continue to promote its money lending business and
expand its loan portfolio and customer base to develop its services
platform which provides liquidity for customers. We will further
develop this business by achieving healthy loan growth in corporate
and individual segments, while at the same time maintaining strong
credit quality and credit risk management to achieve a stable income
stream for the Group.
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Other new businesses

The Group has been seeking investment opportunities from time to
time to broaden the Group’s sources of income. During the year
under review, the Group has signed an agreement to acquire a
natural gas pipeline business in Karamay, Xinjiang, the PRC. The
Board considers that such diversification can reduce the Group’s
reliance on its oil and gas and food and beverages segments.

Appreciation

Looking forward, we will continue our proven strategy of fostering
opportunity for sustainable growth with the aim of enhancing return
for our shareholder. Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to
take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to a team of
devoted staff for their outstanding service and to our shareholders
for your continued support.

Zhao Guogiang
Chief Executive Officer & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 23 March 2017
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Executive Directors

Mr. Zhao Guogiang, aged 59, joined the Company as an executive
director in December 2009 and was elected as the chief executive
officer on 29 December 2009. He graduated from his study for
Physics at Qufu Normal University. He has nearly 35 years of working
experience in exploration and exploitation of petroleum industry. He
acted as senior engineer in Sinopec Shengli Oilfield Company (the
“Shengli Oilfield”) and was awarded the Top-notch talent from
China Petroleum & Chemical Shengli Oilfield. Mr. Zhao was
appointed as an alternative director to Dr. Gu Quan Rong and Mr.
Wang Yongguang on 29 June 2015, and ceased to be an alternative
director to Mr. Wang Yongguang on 27 July 2016.

Mr. Chui Kwong Kau, aged 50, joined the Group in February 2004
and promoted to executive director and chief financial officer in
October 2005 and resigned as chief financial officer on 1 May 2011.
He has over 20 years' experiences in accounting and auditing fields
including over 15 years' accounting and auditing experience in other
public listed companies prior to joining the Group in February 2004.
He is also an executive director of Hong Kong Life Sciences and
Technologies Group Limited (stock code: 8085), which is listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), and a non-executive director
of DeTai New Energy Group Limited (stock code: 559), Hsin Chong
Construction Group Limited (stock code: 0404) and Ngai Shun
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1246), all of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He acted as an independent non-
executive director of Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (stock
code: 8148), which is listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange, from
17 March 2010 to 16 March 2016. Mr. Chui retired as an executive
director on 30 June 2016.

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Wang Yongguang, aged 60, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in November 2012, and was
appointed as Chairman and re-designated as non-executive director
on 25 January 2016. He graduated from the Shengli Qilfield Staff
University specializing in Petroleum Geology. He has more than 33
years of work experience in petroleum industry. He acted as Shengli
Qilfield Dongxin Oil Production Plant operating brigade deputy
commander, the chief of technical supervision and the officer of
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technical quality and safety supervision center. Mr. Wang resigned as
chairman and a non-executive director on 27 July 2016.

Dr. Gu Quan Rong, aged 52, joined the Company as a non-
executive director in September 2014. He obtained a bachelor degree
and a post-doctoral degree in Organic Chemistry from Nanjing
University in 1987 and 1996, respectively, and a doctorate degree in
mineral processing from China University of Mining & Technology,
Beijing in 1993. He is an expert in chemistry, energy, biodiesel and oll
and gas. Between 1996 and now, he held the positions of Associate
Professor, Professor and Vice Dean for Scientific Research in Nanjing
University, and had been a Visiting Scholar in Wayne State University,
United States and University of Regina, Canada and a Senior Research
Fellow in University of Alberta, Canada. He had worked with leading
oilfields in China such as Daging Qilfield, Shengli Qilfield and Dagang
Qilfield, and been the Chief Scientist of energy companies in North
America.

Ms. Ngan Mei Ying, aged 35, joined the Company as a non-
executive director in April 2017. She graduated from Lingnan
University, Hong Kong in 2003 with a bachelor’s degree in
accountancy. She is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and has over 10 years of professional
experience of auditing in international audit firms and accounting
experience in public listed companies.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zong Ketao, aged 50, joined the Company as an independent
non-executive director in July 2015. He is a lawyer qualified to
practice law in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). He holds
a master degree in law from University of International Business and
Economics, China and a bachelor degree in law from Lanzhou
University, China. He has extensive experience in litigation and
arbitration, company law and laws relating to investment, finance,
energy, mining and capital market. From 1989 to 2000, he joined
Sinopec Shengli Oilfield Company Limited, an associate of China
Petroleum & Chemical Corporation (“Sinopec”), as a member of their
in-house legal department. From 2003 to 2004, he was appointed as
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the senior legal supervisor of another group company of Sinopec.
Since 2005, he started his own private legal practice and joined
various law firms in the PRC as a partner.

Mr. Cheng Chun Ying, aged 48, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in January 2016. He is an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and an associate member of the Certified Practicing
Accountants Australia. He holds a master’s degree in business law
from Monash University, Australia and a bachelor’s degree in
commerce accounting from The Curtin University of Technology,
Australia. He has extensive experience in finance and accounting, and
has worked as financial controller in various private and public listed
companies in Hong Kong, Singapore and the United States.

Mr. Lee Man Tai, aged 40, joined the Company as an independent
non-executive director in January 2016. He graduated from Lingnan
University, Hong Kong in 2000 with a bachelor’s degree in business
administration and obtained a master’s degree in business
administration in financial services from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in 2010. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United
Kingdom. He has over 15 years of professional experience in
accounting and auditing. He worked as an audit assistant of Victor
W.N. Ngai & Co., an accountancy firm in Hong Kong, between June
2000 and July 2001. Between September 2001 and April 2006, he
worked as an audit supervisor of Grant Thornton CPA, a member of
Grant Thornton International Ltd (now known as BDO Limited).
Between October 2006 and October 2012, he acted as the chief
financial officer and company secretary of China Yuanbang Property
Holdings Limited, whose shares are listed on Main Board of the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited with stock code BCD.
Between October 2012 and May 2014, he acted as the chief financial
officer and company secretary of China 33 Media Group Limited,
whose shares are listed on the GEM with stock code 8087. Between
August 2014 and April 2015 and July 2014 and April 2015, he acted
as the chief financial officer and company secretary respectively of
Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited, whose shares are listed on
GEM with stock code 8030. Between April and September 2015, he
acted as the company secretary of Chanco International Group
Limited (with its name changed to Ascent International Holdings
Limited effective from 14 June 2016), whose shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange with stock code 264 (“Chanco”);
and between April 2015 and January 2016, he acted as the financial
controller of Chanco. He is an independent non-executive director of
Progressive Path Group Holdings Limited (Stock code: 1581) which is
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listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange. He is also a
representative of Gransing Securities Co., Limited for type 1 and 6
regulated activities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, aged 47, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in July 2010. He holds a bachelor
degree in science with major in accounting of Bemidji State
University, USA and is a member of both American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has over 21 years of experience in auditing
and accounting field. Mr. Fu acted as an independent non-executive
director of Dejin Resources Group Company Limited (stock code:
1163), which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from
31 January 2013 to 12 August 2015. He also acted as an
independent non-executive director of China New Energy Power
Group Limited (stock code: 1041), which is listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, from 4 September 2014 to 10 June 2015.
Which are both listed on the Main Board of Stock Exchange. He is
the company secretary of Hoifu Energy Group Limited (Stock code:
7), which is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange. Mr. Fu
Wing Kwok retired as an independent non-executive director on 26
January 2016.
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Corporate Governance Report
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Overview

The Company is committed to maintain good corporate governance
standard and procedures. The Board recognizes the importance of
and benefit from good corporate governance practices. We believe
that improvement in corporate governance not only assists the
Company in effective supervision and control on its business
operation, but also attracts investment from international institutional
investors, thereby creating and enhancing shareholder value.

The Stock Exchange has promulgated the Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code"”) contained
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

1. Corporate Governance Practices

(@ With respect to the compliance with paragraph A of the
CG Code, the Company has carried out the following
corporate governance practices:

The Company had held nine Board meetings in the year
of 2016. Directors have been consulted to advice the
agenda of the Board meeting. The Board has determined
all material matter by physical board meeting with real-
time conferencing facilities and sufficient notice of the
Board meeting has been given to the directors. Minutes
of the Board and the Board committees are recorded in
sufficient details and kept by the company secretary for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice
by any director. Directors were supplied with adequate
information in a timely manner and taken independent
professional advice at the Company’s expenses to enable
them forming decision in the relevant meetings. The
Company has arranged for insurance cover in respect of
legal action against the directors. The composition of the
Board is shown on pages 47 to 48 of this Annual Report.
A director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition shall hold office until the next general
meeting. Every director is aware that he/she should give
sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Company. Details of the directors’ attendance in different
meetings are set out on page 32. Agreed procedures are
in place providing to the member of the Board and/or
committee to seek independent professional advice at
the Company’s expenses to assist them to discharge their
duties.
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For other details of the responsibilities of directors, please
refer to the section “Board of directors”.

With respect to the compliance with paragraph B of the
CG Code, the Company has established a remuneration
committee with specific written terms of reference,
details of which are set out in pages 35 to 37 of this
Annual Report.

With respect to the compliance with paragraph C of the
CG Code, the Company has carried out the following
corporate governance practices:

Management has provided sufficient explanation and
information to the Board as will enable the Board to
make an informed assessment of financial and other
information put before the Board for approval. The
Company has announced the result of 2016 on 23 March
2017. A statement by the auditor about its reporting
responsibilities is included in Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 57 to 62 of this Annual Report. The
details of the internal controls of the Company and the
audit committee are set out under the section “Internal
Control and Internal Audit” below.
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Internal Control and Internal Audit

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in maintaining
sound and effective internal control system for the Group
to safeguard investments of the shareholders and assets
of the Company at all times. The system of internal
controls aims to help achieving the Group’s business
objectives, safeguarding assets and maintaining proper
accounting records for provision of reliable financial
information. However, the design of the system is to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement in the financial statements or loss
of assets and to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure when business objectives are being sought.
Management has conducted regular reviews during the
year on the effectiveness of the internal control system
covering all material controls in area of financial,
operational and compliance controls, various functions
for risks management as well as physical and information
systems security. The chief financial officer (the “CFO")
has reported to the audit committee from time to time
during the year, in conjunction with key findings
identified by the external auditors, findings and actions or
measures taken in addressing those internal controls. The
audit committee in turn reports any material issues to the
Board. The Board, through the audit committee, also sets
targets for and reviews plan and progress on continuous
improvement work of the Company’s internal control
system with the CFO on a periodic basis.

With respect to the compliance with paragraph D of the
CG Code, the Company has carried out the following
corporate governance practices:

When the Board delegates aspects of its management
and administration functions to management, it has
given clear directions as to the powers of management,
in particular, with respect to the circumstance where
management shall report back and obtain prior approval
from the Board before making decisions or entering into
any commitments on behalf of the Company. The
Company has set up three committees, details of which
are set out in the relevant sections below.
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With respect to the compliance with paragraph E of the
CG Code, the chairman of the Board should attend the
annual general meeting (“AGM") to answer guestions
raised up in the meeting. The chairman has attended the
AGM held on 30 June 2016 to answer questions raised
up in the meeting. The procedures for demanding a poll
by the shareholders were incorporated in every circular
issued during the financial year ended 31 December
2016.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the
date of this Annual Report, the Group has complied with the
provisions of the CG Code except for the following deviations:

(a)

In relation to A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and Chief Executive Officer (the “CEO") should be
separate and should not be performed by the same
individual and the division of responsibilities between the
chairman and CEO should be clearly established and set
out in writing. During the year, Mr. Zhao Guogiang is the
CEO of the Company. On 25 January 2016, Mr. Wang
Yongguang was appointed as the chairman of the
Company but he subsequently resigned as the director
and chairman of the Company on 27 July 2016.
Following the resignation of Mr. Wang Yongguang, the
position of chairman is vacated and the Board intends to
identify satisfiable candidate to fill the vacancy.

In relation to E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the
Board should attend the AGM. During the year 2016, the
Company’s 2015 AGM held on 26 January 2016 and the
Company’s AGM held on 26 January 2016 were attended
by the Company’s then-incumbent chairman, Mr. Wang
Yongguang. Following the resignation of Mr. Wang, the
position of chairman is vacated and the Board intends to
identify satisfiable candidate to fill the vacancy.

ERERBRE

@ HMETEEEATUFERME -
EFEeTREHERRAFAE
((RRBFRE]) UNEHELE
BiRf - TREHER-_ZT—RF
NAZTHARTZBRRBEFAE -
BlZ & FRHEMMERE - RRERK
RRRZEFEIRBE_T RN
FHZA=+—BIEMERFE T
ZEEEA -

RBE-_ZT-R"F+-_A=1+—"HILE
BEEEAREARFREAY  AEECET
PrAEGREE AT AR AT RBESIA
RO -

(@) RIBEGEEARTANEA2. UG £/F
kaBas((TRER) 2 ACRE
FUBED I ERR— AEET A
MEFBRITRESEZBERIAER
BRATE TR EHER L EEE
RRBITEABE, o TR EERZ
T-XNF-A-+RHBEZITAR
REER  MEERZZE—RNFL
A+ tHBEEIARREEZRE
& o BEE KN EBTE  £F—
BET EESHEEVEAENA
BUER 2R o

(b) WRIBLCEEBTAFEEI2ME  ES
SEFREERRBFRE - N
E—RNFR KRRV ZE—XF
— A+ RNEBETHN_Z—AFRK
REAFRKREEN_T—~F—A
ZHABETHRRBEFAE
BHARREBETER I RNLE
FiF o BT AERER  FE B
B EEZEEVEEEMNAE
AR 22 R o

MEHEORRRIERERAT « —E—~EFF}R 29



Corporate Governance Report
CREREE

30

China Energy Development Holdings Limited ¢ Annaul Report 2016

In relation to A.4.1 and A.4.2 of the CG Code, non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific
term, subject to re-election while all directors should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. For the year under review, all independent non-
executive directors of the Company have not been
appointed for a specific term but they are subject to
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s
articles of association.

In relation to I(f) of the CG Code, the board shall
comprise at least three independent non-executive
directors. Following the re-designation of Mr. Wang
Yongguang from an independent non-executive director
to a non-executive director on 25 January 2016, the
number of independent non-executive directors fell
below the minimum number required under Rule 3.10(1)
of the Listing Rules. On 26 January 2016, Mr. Fu Wing
Kwok retired as an independent non-executive director,
and Mr. Cheng Chun Ying and Mr. Lee Man Tai were
appointed as independent non- executive directors.
Following the appointments of Mr. Cheng Chun Ying
and Mr. Lee Man Tai, the Company has fulfilled the
requirement of minimum number of independent non-
executive directors under Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing
Rules.

As announced by the Company on 25 January 2016, Mr.
Wang Yongguang was re-designated as a non-executive
director. Due to Mr. Wang Yongguang'’s re-designation,
(i) the audit committee of the Company did not have a
majority membership comprising independent non-
executive directors as required under Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules; and (ii) the remuneration committee of the
Company did not have a majority membership comprising
independent non-executive directors as required under
Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules. Following the
appointments of Mr. Cheng Chun Ying and Mr. Lee Man
Tai as independent non-executive directors and members
of the audit committee and the remuneration committee
of the Company on 26 January 2016, the Company had
fulfilled (i) the requirement of the audit committee of the
Company comprising a majority of independent non-
executive directors as required under Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules; and (ii) the requirement of the remuneration
committee of the Company comprising a majority of
independent non-executive directors as required under
Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own Code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the directors of
the Company. All incumbent Directors have confirmed
following specific enquiry by the Company that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
through the year.

Board of directors

(@ Up to the date of this Annual Report, the Board
comprises a total of six members including one executive
director, two non-executive directors and three
independent non-executive directors. Members of the
Board have different professional and relevant industry
experiences and background so as to bring in valuable
contributions and advices for the development of the
Group's business. Up to the date of this Annual Report,
the Company has three independent non-executive
directors representing not less than one-third of the
Board, and two of them are qualified accountants.

(b)  The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each incumbent independent non-executive director
of their independence to the Group. The Group
considered that all independent non-executive directors
meets the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance
with the terms of the guidelines. The names of the
directors and their respective biographies are set out on
pages 22 to 25 of this Annual Report.
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(©)  The Board meets periodically with the management to
discuss the Group's strategies development and to review
the business operation. The Board also monitors and
controls financial performance in pursuit of the Group’s
strategic objectives. The names of the directors during
the financial year and their individual attendance of are

set out below:

Name Board
®E -
Mr. Zhao Guogiang HEE LA
(CEO) (fTE48%) 99
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau (retired on £ ¢ ik &
30 June 2016) (RZZE—~F
NA=ZTRRA) 5/6
Mr. Wang Yongguang EKHTE
(resigned on 27 July 2016) (RZE—7F
TAZ T+ BEHE) 6/6
Dr. Gu Quanrong Er&ET 99
Mr. Zong Ketao TRERE 8/9
Mr. Cheng Chun Ying BiRE LA
(appointed on 26 January (RZE—RE
2016) —BZ+ABEZA) 6/6
Mr. Lee Man Tai FUREE
(appointed on 26 January (RZZ—RF
2016) —AZtRBEZE) n
Mr. Fu Wing Kwok BERELE
(retired on 26 January (R=T—~E

2016)

—AZTREER)

n

EXerHEEEESE  AmA
SEZREER LR EFERE -
ErefEsERAREEER
REMEBRER ZMBRE - NBMK
FEZESHAREMARNZEZ

= A
EERWMT
Attendance/number of meetings entitle to attend
HERE BELEZEEHE
Annual/
Extraordinary
Audit  Remuneration Nomination General
Committee Committee Committee Meeting
BREE/
ERERE FMzRe REZRE REAE
N/A N/A N/A
A A TEA 12
N/A N/A N/A
TEA TEA TER 22
072 212 212 212
313 212 212 12
213 112 112 12
313 n "N 17
313 mn n n
N/A N/A N/A
2 ki B il
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The Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with each other.
Each of the independent non-executive directors have
confirmed in writing their independence from the
Company in accordance with the guidelines on director
independence of the Listing Rules. On this basis, the
Company considers all such directors to be independent.

The Board oversees the Group’s strategic development
and determines the objectives, strategies and policies of
the Group.

The major issues which were brought before the Board
for their decisions during the year include:

(i) Proposals related to potential acquisition,
investments, or any significant capital expenditures;
and

(i) Formulation of operational strategies and review of
its financial performance and results and the
internal control system.

The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that the
Company maintains sound and effective internal controls
to safeguard the shareholders’ investments and the
Company’s assets.

Three Board committees, namely, the audit committee,
the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee, have been established to oversee particular
aspect of the Group’s affairs.

The Board also has delegated the day-to-day
management and operations of the Group’s businesses
to management of the Group. Major corporate matters
that are specifically delegated by the Board to the
management include the preparation of financial
statements for Board approval before publishing,
execution of business strategies and initiatives adopted
by the Board, implementation of adequate systems of
internal controls and risk management procedures, and
compliance with relevant statutory requirements and
rules and regulations.
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() In relation to A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors have
participated their own professional training by attending
seminar/programme/reading relevant materials in relation
to the business on directors’ duties.

(k) The Company has attached much importance to the risk
management about directors’ liabilities and has arranged
appropriate liability insurance for Directors and senior
management of the Company. The insurance coverage is
reviewed on an annual basis.

Board diversity policy

On 27 August 2013, the Company adopted the Board diversity
policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) in accordance with the
requirement set out in the CG Code. On 31 March 2016, the
Company revised the Board Diversity Policy. The Company
recognizes that the Board diversity is an essential element
contributing to the sustainable development of the Company.
In designing the Board’s composition, the Board diversity has
been considered from a number of aspects, including but not
limited to the skills, knowledge, gender, age, cultural and
educational background or professional experience. All Board
appointments are based on merits and considered against a
variety of objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

(@) As at the date of this Annual Report, the Chairman of the
Board is vacated. Mr. Zhao Guogiang was elected as the
CEO on 29 December 2009.

(b)  The CEO provides leadership and is responsible for the
effective functioning of the Board in accordance with
good corporate governance practice. With the support of
the senior management, the CEO is also responsible for
ensuring that the directors receive adequate, complete
and reliable information in a timely manner and
appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meeting.
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(¢)  The directors focus on implementing objectives, policies
and strategies approved and delegated by the Board.
Directors are in charge of the Company's day-to-day
management and operations. The directors are also
responsible for assisting the CEO in developing strategic
plans and formulating the company practices and
procedures, business objectives, and risk assessment for
the Board's approval.

Non-executive Directors

All non-executive directors, including independent non-
executive directors, of the Company, have not been appointed
for a specific term, but are subject to retirement by rotation
and eligible for re-election in the AGM in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company.

Remuneration of Directors

(@  The Company has established a remuneration committee
since 23 September 2005 with written terms of reference
and revised on 27 March 2012 as disclosed on the
Company’s website. The primary duties of the
remuneration committee include the following:

i. to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration
of directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration;

i.  to have the delegated responsibility to determine
the specific remuneration packages of all executive
directors and senior management, including
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payment, including any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment,
and make recommendations to the Board of the
remuneration of non-executive directors. The
Committee should consider factors such as salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the directors, employment
conditions elsewhere in the group and desirability
of performance-based remuneration;
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ii. to review and approve performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time;

iv.  to review and approve the compensation payable
to executive directors and senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their
office or appointment to ensure that such
compensation is determined in accordance with
relevant contractual terms and that such
compensation is otherwise fair and not excessive
for the Company;

v.  toreview and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for
misconduct to ensure that such arrangements are
determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and that any compensation payment is
otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

vi.  to ensure that no director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

Up to the date of this Annual Report, the members of the
remuneration committee comprised Mr. Cheng Chun
Ying who acts as the chairman of the remuneration
committee, Dr. Gu Quan Rong, Ms. Ngan Mei Ying, Mr.
Zong Ketao and Mr. Lee Man Tai. The majority of
members of the remuneration committee is comprised of
independent non-executive directors of the Company.

The number of remuneration committee meeting held
during the year and record of individual attendance of
members, on a named basis, at meetings held during was
set out in section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” on page 32 of this Annual Report. The
remuneration committee had reviewed and approved the
management's remuneration proposals with reference to
the Board's corporate goals and objectives.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group
was set up by the remuneration committee on the basis
of their merit, qualification and competence.
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The emolument of the directors of the Company is
determined by the remuneration committee, having
regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Group’s share option scheme as described on page
49 of this Annual Report is adopted as the Group's long-
term incentive scheme.

Nomination of Directors

The Company has established a nomination committee since
27 March 2012 with written terms of reference and amended
on 27 August 2013 as disclosed on the Company’s website.
The primary functions of the nomination committee include the
following:

to review the structure, size and composition (including
but not limited to the skills, knowledge, gender, age,
cultural and educational background or professional
experience) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become the
members of the Board and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships on merits and
against objective criteria, with due regard on the benefits
of diversity on the Board, especially to ensure that the
independent non-executive Directors comprise at least
one-third of the Board;

to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the
chairman of the Board and the CEO, taking into account
the Company’s corporate strategy and the mix of skills,
knowledge, diversity and experience in the future; and
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v.  to review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, and
to review the measurable objectives that the Board has
set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and the
progress on achieving the objectives; and make disclosure
of its review results in the Corporate Governance Report
annually.

Up to the date of this Annual Report, the members of the
nomination committee comprised Mr. Cheng Chun Ying who
acts as the chairman of the nomination committee, Dr. Gu
Quan Rong, Ms. Ngan Mei Ying, Mr. Zong Ketao and Mr. Lee
Man Tai. The majority of members of the nomination
committee is comprised of independent non-executive directors
of the Company.

The number of nomination committee meeting held during the
year and record of individual attendance of members, on a
named basis, at meetings held during was set out in section
headed “Corporate Governance Report” on page 32 of this
Annual Report. The nomination committee had reviewed the
structure, size and composition of the Board, made
recommendations on the changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy and assessed the
independence of independent non-executive directors.

Auditors’ remuneration

For the financial year, BDO Limited, the auditor of the
Company, received HK$990,000 in respect of audit service
provided to the Group. The auditors’ remuneration has been
duly approved by the audit committee and there was no
disagreement between the Board and the audit committee on
the selection and appointment of auditor.

Audit Committee

(@  The audit committee of the Company was established on
30 January 2002. The written terms of reference of the
audit committee were revised on 27 March 2012 and 31
March 2016 as disclosed on the Company’s website. As
at the date of this Annual Report, the audit committee
comprises two non-executive director and three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Lee
Man Tai (chairman of the audit committee), Ms. Ngan
Mei Ying, Dr. Gu Quan Rong, Mr. Zong Ketao and Mr.
Cheng Chun Ying. Mr. Lee Man Tai and Mr. Cheng Chun
Ying are certified public accountants for many years. In
the opinion of the Board, the members of the audit
committee have sufficient financial management
expertise to discharge their duties.
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The number of audit committee meetings held during the
year and record of individual attendance of members, on
a named basis, at meetings held was set out in section
headed “Corporate Governance Report” on page 32
of this Annual Report.

The audit committee is delegated by the Board to assess
matters related to the financial statements of accounts
and to provide recommendations and advices, including
but not limited to the followings:

to consider, and to make recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the
audit fee and other terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of resignation
or dismissal of the external auditor;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectively and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standard;

to discuss with the external auditors before the
audit commences, the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations and ensure co-
ordination where more than one audit firm is
involved;

to develop and implement policy on the
engagement of an external auditor to supply non-
audit services. For this purpose, external auditor
shall include any entity that is under common
control, ownership or management with the audit
firm or any entity that a reasonable and informed
third party having knowledge of all relevant
information would reasonably conclude as part of
the audit firm nationally or internationally. The
Committee should report to the Board, identifying
any matters in respect of which it considers that
action or improvement needed and making
recommendations as to the steps to be taken;
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vi.

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual report and accounts, half-
year report and, if prepared for publication,
quarterly reports, and to review significant financial
reporting judgments contained in them;

in reviewing, the Company’s annual report and
accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication, quarterly reports before submission to
the Board, the Committee should focus particularly
on:

a. any changes in accounting policies and
practice;

b.  major judgmental areas;

¢ significant adjustments resulting from the
audit;

d. the going concern assumption and any
qualifications;

e.  compliance with accounting standards;

f. compliance with the Listing Rules and other
legal requirements in relation to financial
reporting;

g. the fairness and reasonableness of any
connected transaction and the impact of such
transaction on the profitability of the Group;

h. whether all relevant items have been
adequately disclosed in the Group's financial
statements and whether the disclosures give
a fair view of the Group’s financial
conditions;

any significant or unusual items that are, or
may need to be, reflected in such reports and
accounts; and

J. the cashflow position of the Group.

and to provide advice and comments thereon to
the Board;
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vii.

viii.

Xi.

Corporate Governance Report

in regard to vi. above:

a.  members of the Committee must liaise with
the Board and senior management. The
Committee must meet, at least twice a year,
with the Company’s auditors; and

b. the Committee should consider any
significant or unusual items that are, or may
need to be, reflected in such reports and
accounts and must give due consideration to
any matters that have been raised by the
Company'’s accountant, compliance officer or
auditors.

to discuss problems and reservations arising from
the interim and final audits, and any matters the
auditors may wish to discuss (in the absence of
management where necessary);

to discuss with the management the risk
managements and internal control systems and
ensure the management has discharged its duty to
have effective risk management and internal
control systems and to review the Company’s
statements on risk management and internal
control systems (which are included in the annual
report) prior to endorsement by the Board;

to consider any findings of major investigations on
risk management and internal control matters as
delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response;

(where an internal audit function exists) to review
the internal audit programme, ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and
ensure that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Company and to review monitor, the effectiveness
of the internal audit function;

vii.

viii.
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xii. to conduct exit interviews with any director,
manager, financial controller or internal audit
control manager upon their resignation in order to
ascertain the reasons for his departure;

xiii. to prepare work reports for presentation to the
Board and to prepare summary of work reports for
inclusion in the Group's interim and annual reports;

Xiv. to consider the appointment of any person to be a
Committee member, a company secretary, auditors
and accounting staff (including internal control
department) either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
additional Committee member, company secretary,
auditors and accounting staff or dismissal of any of
them;

xv. to consider the major findings of internal
investigations and management’s response;

Xvi. to review the external auditor’s management letter,
any material queries raised by the auditor to
management in respect of the accounting records,
financial accounts or systems of control and
management’s response;

xvii. to ensure that the Board will provide a timely
response to the issues raised in the external
auditor’'s management letter;

xviii. to report to the Board on the matters set out in the
code provisions contained in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices set out in (and as
amended from time to time) Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules; and

xix. to consider other matters, as defined or assigned
by the Board from time to time.

(d) In addition to the above tasks regarding to the
Company’s financial statement, the audit committee
should also to consider any other matters, as defined by
the Board from time to time; and to conduct interviews
with any director, manager, financial controller upon
their resignation in order to ascertain the reasons for his
departure.
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11.

12.

Corporate Governance Report

(e)  The audit committee acknowledges its responsibility
in maintaining sound and effective internal control
system of the Group to safeguard investments of
the shareholders and assets of the Company at all
times.

(f)  The Group’s interim report for the year ended 30
June 2016 and annual report for the year ended 31
December 2016 have been reviewed by the audit
committee.

Company Secretary

Mr. Chan Chun Kau has been the Company Secretary of the
Company since June 2014. Mr. Chan is a solicitor in Hong
Kong. He is responsible to the Board for ensuring the Board
procedures and all applicable law, rules and regulations are
followed. During the year, Mr. Chan undertook over 15 hours
of professional training to update his skills and knowledge.

Shareholder Rights and Investor Relations

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a
poll on resolutions at shareholders’ meetings are contained in
the Company’s articles of association. Details of such rights to
demand a poll and the poll procedures are included in all
circulars to shareholders and will be explained during the
proceedings of meetings.

Poll results will be published on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange on or before the business day
following the shareholders’ meeting.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The
chairman of the Board as well as the chairmen of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee, or in their absence, other members of the
respective committees, is available to answer questions at the
shareholders’ meetings.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on
each substantial issue, including the election of individual
directors. During the year, there was no significant change in
the constitutional documents.
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13.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains regular dialogue with investors and analysts to keep
them abreast of the Company’s developments. Enquiries from
investors are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

Right to convene extraordinary general
meeting

Extraordinary general meeting may be convened by the Board
on requisition of shareholders holding not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company or by such shareholders
who made the written requisition (the “Requisitionists”) to
the Board or the Secretary of the Company (as the case may
be) pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association. Such
Requisition must state the object of business to be transacted
at the meeting and must be signed by the Requisitionists and
deposited at the registered office of the Company or the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

Shareholders should follow the requirements and procedures
as set out in such Article for convening an extraordinary general
meeting. Shareholders may put forward proposals at general
meeting of the Company by sending the same to the Company
at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Company. Shareholders may
send their enquiries or requests in respect of their rights to the
Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong.

By the order of the Board

Zhao Guogiang
Chief Executive Officer & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 23 March 2017
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The directors present herewith the Annual Report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016.

Principal Activity and Business Review

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries involves
sales of food and beverages in Hong Kong, exploration and
production of natural gas in PRC and money lending business, the
details of which are set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as regular by
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “Company Ordinance”), including a fair review of
the business and a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group, particulars of important events affecting the Group
that have occurred since the end of the financial year 2016, and an
indication of likely future development in the Group’s business, can
be found in the section headed “CEQ’s Statement and Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this Annual Report. The above section
forms part of this report of the Directors.

Financial Statements and Dividends

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income on pages 63 to 64.

The state of the Group's affairs as at 31 December 2016 is set out in
the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position on pages 65 to 66.

The directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2016.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the consolidated financial results and consolidated
assets and liabilities of the Group for the past five financial years is
set out on page 152.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are set
out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2016 are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital and Share Options

Movements in share capital of the Company during the year,
together with reasons thereof, and of the Company’s share options,
are set out in note 26 and note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the Laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 67 and note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2016 are set
out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively during
the financial year is as follows:

The largest customer BAEP
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFEE
The largest supplier BARER

A EREAER

Five largest suppliers in aggregate

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had
any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

Composition of the Board

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this Annual Report as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhao Guogiang (Chief Executive Officer and alternate director to
Dr. Gu Quan Rong)

Mr. Chui Kwong Kau (Retired on 30 June 2016)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Wang Yongguang (Resigned on 27 July 2016)
Dr. Gu Quan Rong

Ms. Ngan Mei Ying (Appointed on 10 April 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zong Ketao

Mr. Cheng Chun Ying (Appointed on 26 January 2016)
Mr. Lee Man Tai (Appointed on 26 January 2016)

Mr. Fu Wing Kwok (Retired on 26 January 2016)
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Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, Mr. Zhao
Guogiang, Mr. Zong Ketao and Ms. Ngan Mei Ying, will retire at the
upcoming AGM and be eligible for re-election.

Director’s Biographies

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on
pages 22 to 25 of this Annual Report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract with the Company which was not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation
other than statutory compensation.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or existed during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No other contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Directors’ Interest and Short Position in Shares

As at 31 December 2016, none of the directors or chief executives of
the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Apart from the share option scheme disclosures in the section
“Share Option Scheme” below, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

Equity-linked Agreements

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during the year
or subsisting at the end of the year are set out below:

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 25 June 2013 and the
Stock Exchange granting approval of the listing of and permission to
deal in the shares to be issued under the share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) on 26 June 2013, the Company has
adopted the Share Option Scheme to replace the expired share
option scheme adopted 28 January 2002 and as amended on 2
November 2006.

Under the terms of the Share Option Scheme adopted, the Board of
the Company may, at its discretion, grant options to eligible
participants to subscribe for shares of the Company.

No share option was granted and exercised during the year under
review and there was no outstanding share option as at 31
December 2016 and 2015.

Substantial Shareholders’ interests and Short
Position

As at 31 December 2016, the interests or short positions of the
persons, other than a director or chief executive of the Company, in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336
of the SFO were as follows:

Report of the Directors

EEERG

EEBARDHES 2ER

BT X [BIRAERT & — SR 2 Pt &
S AR m SR AT B A R R AN FE AL
Hﬁ&ﬁiﬂﬁ@ﬁ“ﬂZ%%T%ﬂ%k%
NHEHFESARASIEEMEMAREE L
AEHER -

[REREE =

$¢§J¢i%¢$%ﬁ&2h%@ Sl ss
BESNAT

SRRt &

BEARFRZE-—=ZF A THARTH
IRERFFRIAS BB ERRER  ARBR
IR T —=%F XA -+ B YREERES
2 ([mrEstdl) Besrmnkmnh tmkESE
HLE - RARIERAEBRE S ARED
EmrBRET S (R —FTT _F—-A=-F+N\
EH?KQW&E/\_v 7/\¢+ H EM uT)

RBRAOBIRAEZINGESR  ARAEES
ARBEREER2EERDBRE  URBEX
RAEBEAD ©

REBEFRN  TEBERECERDERITE B
TE-RER-E—AF+-_A=+—8 I
IS ARITE 2 BEARAE -

FTERRZERZRAR

<

RZEB-—RE+_A=+—H "  xREIFEFHK
BRITBABNRINZ ALRARE Z B K8
BRI P15 A B 75 R I E R 1] 5 336 IR L E A
NGl

AR AR 2 R SORBIAT

hEACEERIERERAT s —E—<EEH 49



Report of the Directors

EEERE

Long Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares

of the Company

Name of Shareholders

RR#EE/ A8

Huge Pearl International
Limited'

Pure Light Enterprise Ltd.!

U.K. Prolific Petroleum Group

Company Ltd.’

Wang Hanning'
TEF

Harvest Fund Management
Co., Ltd.2
EEELERARAF?

China Credit Trust Co., Ltd?
HEERBRETELRR

Wang Da Yong?
ENCE

Simsen International
Corporation Limited?
RITBIRR (I20%) AR A A3

Nature of interests

EEnE
Trustee
EEA

Trustee

A

Interest of controlled

corporation

REHAE

Founder of discretionary

trust
SREFARA

Investment manager

RERE

Interest of controlled

corporation

RIEHNEE 2 #e st

Beneficial Owner
ExAA

Beneficial Owner
ExAA

Number of
shares

RO#E

1,860,000,000

1,860,000,000

1,860,000,000

1,860,000,000

1,134,772,000

1,134,772,000

2,375,000,000

617,749,690

Number of
underlying
shares
B
RHEAE

11,658,750,000

11,658,750,000

11,658,750,000

11,658,750,000
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Total number
of shares and
underlying
shares

B4R
HRARDEH

13,518,750,000

13,518,750,000

13,518,750,000

13,518,750,000

1,134,772,000

1,134,772,000

2,375,000,000

617,749,690

RAERXTDRH REBERD 2FR

Approximate
percentage of
issued share
capital
HEBTRAE
BOE

142.22%

142.22%

142.22%

142.22%

11.94%

11.94%

29.98%

7.80%



Notes:

Based on the filings under Disclosure of Interest (“DI”) under Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance retrieved by the Company from public records,
(a) U.K. Prolific Petroleum Group Limited (“UK Prolific”) regarded itself to be
interested in 1,860,000,000 shares of the Company (“Shares”) and convertible
notes (the “Convertible Notes”) in the principal amount of HK$1,958,670,000
due in 2041 not carrying any interest with right to convert the Convertible Notes
into a maximum of 11,658,750,000 Shares at a conversion price of HK$0.168 per
Share; and (b) UK Prolific regarded itself to be wholly owned by Pure Light
Enterprise Limited (“Pure Light”), which was reportedly wholly owned by Huge
Pearl International Limited (“Huge Pearl”), which in turn was reportedly the
trustee for Wang's Trust, a discretionary trust for which Mr. Wang Hanning was
reported as the founder.

These Convertible Notes were issued by the Company to UK Prolific upon
completion of the Group’s acquisition (“Totalbuild Transaction”) of the entire
equity interest in Totalbuild Investments Group (Hong Kong) Limited (which in
turn holds the entire issued share capital of China Era Energy Power Investment
(Hong Kong) Limited) pursuant to the acquisition agreement (the “Totalbuild
Agreement”) between the Company (as purchaser) and Totalbuild Investments
Holdings Group Limited (the “Vendor”) dated 22 January 2009. As a result of
Totalbuild Transaction, the Company has issued convertible notes in principal
amount of HK$2,558,000,000 carrying right to convert to Shares at the
conversion price of HK$0.168 each (“Tranche | Convertible Notes”) to UK
Prolific, which was nominated by the Vendor to be the allottee of such notes. In
accordance with the terms of Totalbuild Transaction, a principal amount of
HK$1,279,000,000 out of the Tranche | Convertible Notes was deposited with an
escrow agent which should only be released to the Vendor (or UK Prolific as the
Vendor may direct) if the Company receives a written certificate issued by the
competent evaluator confirming that the “First Designated Area” can be
evaluated on the basis of “Unrisked Economic Evaluation” on or before 31 May
2015 (as such terms are defined in the circular in relation to the Totalbuild
Transaction dated 3 December 2010). As no such written certificate was received
by the Company on or before 31 May 2015, the Shortfall Bonds have now been
returned to the Company for cancellation.

In addition, on 17 June 2015 (Cayman Islands time), the Company commenced
legal proceedings in the Grand Court of the Cayman Islands (the “Litigation”)
against various parties including the Vendor, Mr. Wang Guoju (the guarantor of
the Vendor), UK Prolific (the allottee of Tranche | Convertible Notes as nominated
by the Vendor) and Mr. Wang Hanning (owner and controller of UK Prolific),
whereby the Company seeks, inter alia, a declaration that the Totalbuild
Agreement is void or, alternatively, the Company is allowed to rescind the
Totalbuild Agreement, and other remedies including damages, on the basis that,
inter alia, the charge laid by prosecution authorities in China against Mr. Wang
Guoju for (inter alia) illegal operation crime (the “Charge”), possibly involving
allegations about improper conduct during the obtaining of the Petroleum
Contract, casts serious doubt over: (a) the warranties given by the Vendor and
Mr. Wang Guoju in relation to the Petroleum Contract upon which the Company
relied in entering into the Totalbuild Transaction; and (b) the validity of the
Totalbuild Agreement by which the Company issued Tranche | Convertible Notes
to UK Prolific, and as a consequence UK Prolific’s entitlement to any shareholding
in the Company.

i
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Up to 31 December 2016, the Company has not received any DI filings from any
of the related parties to reflect any changes of their deemed interest in the
relevant shares in the light of the above developments.

2. These shares were held an asset management product managed by Harvest Fund 2.
Management Co., Ltd. (“Harvest Fund”), namely China Guangfa Bank-JS FUND-
QDII2.

Based on the DI filings made by the relevant shareholder(s) to the Company,
Harvest Fund is 40% owned by China Credit Trust Co., Ltd. As such, China Credit
Trust Co., Ltd. is deemed to be interested in all the shares of the Company
owned by Harvest Fund.

3. Based on the information obtained by the Company from United Simsen 3.
Securities Limited (“United Simsen”), being the placing agent of the placing
announced by the Company on 9 May 2014 (the “Placing”) and the underwriter
of the open offer announced on the same date (the “Open Offer”) at the
relevant time, United Simsen has sub-underwritten the entire offer shares under
the Open Offer to three sub-underwriters, who have respectively agreed to sub-
underwrite 2,375,000,000, 617,749,690 and 395,000,000 shares under the
Open Offer. On or around 12 May 2014, the Company received two DI filing
forms from United Simsen notifying the Company that Wang Da Yong and
Simsen International Corporation Limited (“Simsen International”) were
respectively deemed to be interested in 2,375,000,000 and 617,749,690 shares.
At the relevant time, the Company was given to understand that the deemed
interest in shares referred to the shares which Wang Da Yong and Simsen
International had respectively agreed to sub-underwrite under the Open Offer.

The Open Offer and the underwriting agreement relating to the Open Offer were
terminated on 23 June 2014, but up to 31 December 2016, the Company has
not received any DI filings reflecting Wang Da Yong's and Simsen International’s
ceasing to own the deemed interest in the relevant shares.
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Related and Connected Party Transactions

Details of the significant related party and connected transaction of
the Group under the Listing Rules are set out in note 31 to the
financial statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities of
the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities, during the
year ended 31 December 2016.

Bank Borrowings and Banking Facilities

The Group had no outstanding bank borrowings as at 31 December
2016 and 2015.

Sufficiency of Public Float

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 December 2016.

Corporate Governance

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 26 to 44 of this
Annual Report.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own Code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the directors of the Company. All
incumbent directors have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code through the year.
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Environmental, Social and Governance

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of the
environment and maintaining a high standard of corporate social
governance essential for creating a framework for motivating staff,
and contributes to the community in which we conduct our
businesses and creating a sustainable return to the Group.

Working Conditions

The Company adopted the Board Diversity Policy in accordance with
the requirement set out in the CG Code. The Company recognizes
that the Board diversity is an essential element contributing to the
sustainable development of the Company. In designing the Board's
composition, the Board diversity has been considered from a number
of aspects, including but not limited to the skills, knowledge, gender,
age, cultural and educational background or professional experience.
A Board Diversity Policy, with the aim of enhancing the quality of the
Board's performance by diversity, was adopted on 27 August 2013
and revised on 31 March 2016.

The Group encourages its staff to participate in external seminars and
lectures to keep abreast of changes and updates on areas of legal,
compliance, financial accounting and reporting, and market industry
practices. Through these types of training, we believe that the Group
can increase its efficiency and productivity while overall reduction of
risk and uncertainties of the Group can be reduced.

The Company encourages continuous professional development
training for the Directors and senior management to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills which includes seminars and
workshops, updates on regulatory requirements and development
and corporate governance practices.

Health and Safety

The Group strives to provide a healthy and safe working environment
to the employees. In order to maintain a healthy and safe working
environment, the Group has upgraded and maintained tools, office
and IT equipment.

Environment Protection

Conservation of the environment is a key focus for the Group. The
Group complies with environmental legislation, encourages
environmental protection and promotes environmental protection
awareness to all employees of the Group.
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Community Involvement

The Group is committed to participating in community events from
time to time, and to the improvement of community well-being and
social services. The Group supports and encourages staff to actively
participate in a wide range of charitable events outside working
hours, to raise awareness and concern for the community, and to
inspire more people to take part in serving the community.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group has compliance and risk management policies and
procedures, and members of the senior management are delegated
with the continuing responsibility to monitor adherence and
compliance with all significant legal and regulatory requirements.

As far as the Company is aware, it has complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the business and operation of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Relationship with Stakeholders

The Group is committed to operate in a sustainable manner while
balancing the interests of its various stakeholders including
customers, suppliers and employees. Through regular stakeholder
engagement via different channels, the stakeholders are encouraged
to give their opinions regarding the environmental, social and
governance policies of the Group.

This includes providing quality services to customers, developing
effective and mutual beneficial working relationships with its
suppliers, and offering competitive remuneration package with safety
working environments to employees.

The details of environmental, social and governance policies and
performance of the Group will be disclosed in a standalone
Environmental, Social and Governance Report, which will be issued in
or before July 2017.
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Indemnity of Directors

A permitted indemnity provision that provides for indemnity against
liability incurred by directors and chief executives of the Group is
currently in force and was in force throughout the year ended 31
December 2016.

Audit Committee

The audit committee comprises two non-executive directors and
three independent non-executive directors of the Company. The
audit committee has adopted terms of reference which are in line
with the CG Code. The Group's audited financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2016 have been reviewed by the audit
committee, who is of the opinion that such statements comply with
applicable accounting standards, the Listing Rules and other legal
requirements, and that adequate disclosures have been made.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016 have been audited by BDO Limited, who shall retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution
for the re-appointment of BDO Limited as auditor of the Company is
to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Zhao Guogiang
Chief Executive Officer & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 23 March 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report

|IBDO

EE% : +852 2218 8288
{8H : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

B B EN RS

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
EETHER1115R
k&I 251&

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA ENERGY DEVELOPMENT
HOLDINGS LIMITED

(FEIRERARIZERERAT)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Disclaimer of Opinion

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of
China Energy Development Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 63 to 151,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the matters
described in the “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion” section of our
report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these
consolidated financial statements and whether the consolidated
financial statements have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

1.

58

Scope limitation — intangible assets,
exploration and evaluation assets, and
deferred tax assets

Included in the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2016 are intangible assets, exploration and
evaluation assets, and deferred tax assets with carrying
amounts of HK$1,571,240,000, HK$380,420,000 and
HK$86,373,000 respectively (2015: HK$1,792,785,000,
HK$433,832,000 and HK$89,796,000 respectively) (collectively
referred to as the “Assets”). The Assets were principally
acquired by the Group through acquisition of a 100% equity
interest in Totalbuild Investments Group (Hong Kong) Limited
(“"Totalbuild Investments”) and its subsidiaries (“Totalbuild
Transaction”) during the year ended 31 December 2011 from
a company controlled by Mr. Wang Guoju. As further disclosed
in Notes 16, 17 and 19 to the consolidated financial
statements, the intangible assets represent interests in a
petroleum contract, which was entered between China Era
Energy Power Investment (Hong Kong) Limited, a subsidiary of
Totalbuild Investments, and China National Petroleum
Corporation (“CNPC”) in relation to the drilling, exploration,
exploitation and production of oil and natural gas in North
Kashi Block, Tarim Basin in the People’s Republic of China
("PRC") (the "Petroleum Contract”). Exploration and
evaluation assets represents costs directly associated with
exploratory wells (drilling cost and others) that are capitalised
and deferred tax assets related to exploration and evaluation
activities.

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016, the directors
of the Company estimated the recoverable amount of the
Assets. At both year-end dates, the carrying amounts of the
intangible assets and exploration and evaluation assets
exceeded the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit
to which these assets were assigned. Accordingly, impairment
losses of HK$100,000,000 and HK$24,000,000 were
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2016 on intangible
assets and exploration and evaluation assets respectively (2015:
HK$1,057,000,000 and HK$256,000,000 respectively). In
estimating the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit
at both year-end dates, the directors of the Company made
certain assumptions which included the future business plan of
the oil and gas operations and the Petroleum Contract will be
executed as planned.
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Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion (Continued)

1.

Scope limitation — intangible assets,
exploration and evaluation assets, and
deferred tax assets (Continued)

As further explained in Note 32(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, during the year ended 31 December 2015, the
directors of the Company were informed that Mr. Wang Guoju,
as the guarantor of the vendor for the Totalbuild Transaction,
was formally charged by prosecution authorities in the PRC for
undertaking illegal operations (the “Charge”), possibly
involving allegations about improper conduct in obtaining the
Petroleum Contract. In the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 and
31 December 2016, the directors of the Company have
obtained a legal opinion in respect of the Charge which states
that the Charge has yet to reach the judgment stage and it is
not possible to estimate the outcome. The legal opinion also
states that if Mr. Wang Guoju is found guilty for improper
conduct in obtaining the Petroleum Contract, the Petroleum
Contract may be voidable and the Group may not be able to
exercise its rights under the Petroleum Contract.

After taking into account the legal opinion on the possible
consequence of the Charge, the Company has commenced
legal proceedings in the Grand Court of the Cayman Islands
against various parties including Mr. Wang Guoju and the
vendor during the year ended 31 December 2015. There is no
progress in the legal proceeding in 2016. Despite of the
Charge, in both the current year and in 2015, the directors of
the Company consider that the Petroleum Contract will
continue to be valid and will be executed on the basis that the
Group has a close working relationship with CNPC and, up to
the date when the directors approved the consolidated
financial statements, there is no indication from CNPC
regarding any potential claim or questioning the validity of the
Petroleum Contract.

As at the date of this report, there is no adjudication in respect
of the Charge. As a result, we were unable to obtain sufficient
and appropriate audit evidence concerning (i) the validity of the
Petroleum Contract and therefore as to the ownership of the
intangible assets (which is one of the major assets of the
Exploration and Production segment of the Group); and (ii)
whether the recoverable amounts and impairment provisions of
the Assets were appropriately recognised. Any adjustments to
the carrying amount of the Assets found to be necessary would
reduce the Group’s net assets as at 31 December 2016,
increase the Group's loss for the year then ended and affect
the related elements making up the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows. Because of the matters described above, together with
the matter described in point 2 below, in relation to our audit
of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015, we did not express an opinion thereon.
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Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion (Continued)

2.

60

Uncertainties relating to going concern

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had net current liabilities
of HK$177,727,000 and incurred a loss of HK$162,688,000
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$171,525,000
and HK$1,281,436,000 respectively). In addition, as detailed in
point 1 above, if the Charge results in a conviction and the
Petroleum Contract is voidable, the Group may not be able to
exercise its rights under the Petroleum Contract. These
conditions, both in the current year and in 2015, indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant
doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the directors of the Company
have prepared the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis, the appropriateness of which largely depends
upon the outcome of the underlying assumptions, as detailed
in Note 3(b)(ii) to the consolidated financial statements, which
in particular include (i) the Petroleum Contract continues to be
valid; (ii) CNPC will pay the proceeds as agreed in the
preliminary gas sharing proposals before 31 December 2017
(the “Proceeds”); (iii) the Group will be able to successfully
persuade the contractors not to demand repayment of the
construction cost payables before the Company receives the
proceeds from the preliminary gas sharing proposals from
CNPC; and (iv) the Group will be able to raise adequate funding
through equity fund raising.

If Mr. Wang Guoju is found guilty for improper conduct in
obtaining the Petroleum Contract as mentioned in point 1
above, the Petroleum Contract may become voidable.
Ownership of the intangible assets and the recoverable
amounts of the Assets, which are the major assets of the
Exploration and Production segment of the Group, may be in
doubt and the Group may not be able to carry out the business
relating to exploration, development, production and sale of
natural gas. In addition, the Company has not obtained any
written confirmation that CNPC will pay the Proceeds before
31 December 2017 (2015: before 31 December 2016) and that
the contractors will not insist on payment of the construction
cost payables until the Company receives the proceeds from
CNPC.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion (Continued)

2.

Uncertainties relating to going concern
(Continued)

Accordingly, we were unable to determine whether it is
appropriate for the directors to prepare the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 on
the going concern basis. There were no alternative audit
procedures that we could perform to satisfy ourselves as to
whether the going concern basis is appropriate. Should the
going concern basis be considered inappropriate, adjustments
would have to be made to write down the carrying amounts of
the Group's assets to their realisable values, to provide for any
further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-current
assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities, respectively. The effects of these adjustments have
not been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

The directors of the Company also have prepared the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015 (the “2015 Consolidated Financial
Statements”) on a going concern basis with underlying
assumptions similar to those adopted in 2016 as stated above.
In our audit of the 2015 Consolidated Financial Statements, we
were also unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
concerning the validity of the Petroleum Contract and the
viability of other assumptions. Together with the matter
detailed in point 1 above, we did not express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015.

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated
Financial Statements (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibilities in this regard.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA and to issue an auditor’s
report. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with the terms of our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

However, because of the matters described in the “Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion” section of our report, we were not able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an
audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
“Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lam Pik Wah
Practising Certificate no. P05325

Hong Kong, 23 March 2017

EERGEUBRRARECEE

(&)

REURA M B RRE  EXAANE EXE
FEQLZNEES  THEERBR THE LRSS
REEMNEE URERKEKEREE
B BIEFAER BESEBRIEFELL
2 HRIEEMERNERTE -

EENERER ESENMBHERER T
REBeMPEFETRSFAELTEZEE -

%ﬁﬁ%%&%é%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%
BE

BEEZRIRREBEAGHTNASEMZER
B EA(ERBAEN DY BEREZHEA
MR ETER W ERBENRE - RIF
BEEZERRBGER ABEER BMTUHER—
HEE) R BREEMBAN -  EFH 5
ABEZAR - AEAEMALAEREEHE

=
=

A BRARE [TERBERZEE | —HF
MEE BEERENFEHEENELEE -
URESHRNEFEEUBERRBERERERE
HERE -

REZEGTMAS(EXSTMBEXERT
A=A - BEEBYR BE5E BEEED
RETAEITHEMEREE -

&=
=7

BRI ERRETHELMERAA
HEEATED

MEE
¥ B Z5E15 P05325

&5 —F—t£=A=1=A

62 China Energy Development Holdings Limited ® Annaul Report 2016



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

A EHEBEER

BT RF+-_A=1+—HIFE

Revenue

Other income

Cost of inventories consumed

Staff costs

Operating lease rentals

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Fuel costs and utility expenses

Fair value loss of financial assets held for
trading

Impairment of intangible assets

Impairment of exploration and evaluation
assets

Gain on reversal of impairment of loan
receivable

Gain on cancellation of convertible notes

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Other operating expenses

Finance costs

Loss before income tax
Income tax credits

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss

Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign operations

Total comprehensive income for the
year

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #;

Uz

Haug A
KOHRETF B A

BT RA

wEHEHRS

ME - BERREZITE

RmE RKER
FIEEBZERMEEZATE
B

BIZEERE

BRI FHEEERE

P E FURE B 2 W as
AESH AT R 2 W
HEMB ARz e

Hip 25

BEMA

BRETEBAIE R
PISHiE %

rEEBR

H 2 W s
HEATREN I BERHEZ

==
MEBIINEREEZELE5

REERHEKFERE

Notes

B aE

15

17
16
20

25
34

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
1,117 7,399
807 8,408
(14) (5,281)
(9,366) (11,882)
(4,396) (3,287)
(749) (679)
(172) (410)
(1,434) (44,648)
(100,000) (1,057,000)
(24,000) (256,000)
= 22,783

= 92,459

776 =
(21,553) (26,572)
(6,505) (9,209)
(165,489) (1,283,919)
2,801 2,483
(162,688) (1,281,436)
(127,749) (166,830)
(290,437) (1,448,266)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ =T — "NF+-_A=+—HILFE

Notes
Bt aE
Loss attributable to: T OIS :
Owners of the Company ViNINEIEZ =N
Non-controlling interests SRR
Total comprehensive income THEEEEKREEEE :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company PiN/NEIEZ =N
Non-controlling interests SRR R
Loss per share attributable to owners ZAQFEEABERKEESR
of the Company for the year Eia 12

— Basic and diluted — EARAR#E
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2016 2015
—E-RE —ZT—RHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
(162,688) (1,281,436)
(162,688) (1,281,436)
(290,437) (1,448,266)
(290,437) (1,448,266)
HK(1.71) HK(13.48)
cents Al cents &1l




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Exploration and evaluation assets
Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets

Current assets
Loan and interest receivables
Financial assets held for trading
Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments
Amount due from a related company
Cash and bank balances

Total assets

Current liabilities
Trade payables
Other payables and accruals
Amount due to a shareholder

Net current liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities

e B IR R R

At 31 December 2016 R-ZT— R F+_-_A=+—H

Notes
ihg=s
FRBEE
W - BB REE 15
R R HEE 16
mpEE 17
RERIRE B 19(a)
REEE
W EREF B 20
BEEBECSRMEE 21
Hh W EIE - 5T RTER
B 22
JE U — &I B B A R 3R IE 24(a)
Be RIRTT4E
HWEE
REBEE
FETER K 23(a)
Hoh JE A F0IE K FE T RUR 23(b)
FER— R IR RIE 24(b)

RBEEFE

EERERRBAE

2016 2015
—E-XE —ZT—RF
HK$000 HK$°000
FET F#T
3,396 4,252
380,420 433,832
1,571,240 1,792,785
86,373 89,796
2,041,429 2,320,665
26,235 46,803
58,862 68,442
6,798 6,995

= 9,137
203,719 204,278
295,614 335,655
2,337,043 2,656,320
= 2,889
432,939 463,889
40,402 40,402
473,34 507,180
(177,727) (171,525)
1,863,702 2,149,140
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B ISR L R

At 31 December 2016 R=—Z— X E+-_A=+—H

Non-current liabilities
Convertible notes
Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets

Equity
Share capital
Reserves

Attributable to owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

These consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23 March 2017.

Zhao Guogiang
HE R
Director

EF

FRBEE
Qe S
EREHAEAE

AEEFE

Rz
[E@N
fFE 1

RRRHRB ANEIE

TR 2

s

Notes

B aE

25
19(a)

26

ﬁ_
EN=
TIEZERE

2016 2015
—E-XE —ZT—RF
HK$000 HK$°000
FHT F#T
58,039 52,234

= 53

58,039 52,287
1,805,663 2,096,853
475,267 475,267
1,330,396 1,620,833
1,805,663 2,096,100
= 753
1,805,663 2,096,853

Gu Quan Rong

BER

Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity\

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —"F+_A=+—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARRERAES
Convertible Non-
Issued  Contributed Share notes  Translation Accumulated controlling Total
capital surplus— premium reserve reserve losses  Sub-total interests equity
B4 Gk

BETRA RARHK RORE REBRE L2RERE RHEB Nt OERRES  BRLE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FEL FET FET FEL FET FEL FET FET
(note 29(a))  (note 29(b))  (note 29(c))
(MizE29@) (E29b)) (MizE29(0)

Balance at 1 January 2015 R-Z—14—f—H
i 475,267 30,004 1,679,187 2,005,233 71,560 (716,885) 3,544,366 753 3545119

Total comprehensive income AEELENEEE

for the year - - - - (166,830) (1,281,436) (1,448,266) - (1,448,266)
Cancellation of convertible notes  s+44 3R AR =42 (3t 25)
(Note 25) - - - (1,309,405 - 1,309,405 - - -
Balance at 31 December 2015 R=—ZE—R&
TZA=tT—Hz&H 475267 30,004 1,679,187 695,828 (95,270)  (688,916) 2,096,100 753 2,096,853
Total comprehensive income rEEIENGEE
for the year - - - - (127,749)  (162,688)  (290,437) - (290,437)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 34)  H & BAR] (FizE34) = = = = - - - (753) (753)
Balance at 31 December 2016~ RA=F—X4&E
TZAZT—Bz&H 475267 30,004 1,679,187 695828  (223,019)  (851,604) 1,805,663 - 1,805,663
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZ —T— X XF+_A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—RE —E—AF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt aE FHET FET
Cash flows from operating activities REEBRERE
Loss before income tax MRETSBiATES 18 (165,489) (1,283,919)
Adjustments for: BUATIEE LA
Interest expenses FBEAX 6,505 9,209
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BMEMBEZITE
equipment 749 679
Interest income FEHA (25) (11)
Fair value loss of financial assets held REBEBEZEMEEZRT
for trading BEEE 1,434 44,648
Exchange gain, net b 5 W FE (782) (4,394)
Written off of other payables and 8 LAt PR A 3R IE I PR AT R
accruals 18 = (4,000)
Impairment of intangible assets EmZEAERE 100,000 1,057,000
Impairment of exploration and IR AT B ERE
evaluation assets 24,000 256,000
Gain on reversal of impairment of loan  fEUE FURE R @ 2 W
receivable - (22,783)
Gain on cancellation of convertible FEEH AT IRRR B4R v W
notes = (92,459)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB ARz W (776) =
Operating cash flows before working FtAEEERSEHILER S
capital changes wE (34,384) (40,030)
Decrease/(increase) in loan and interest  FEUR B 2 &% FI| B35 /(12
receivables ) 20,568 (46,803)
Increase in other receivables, deposits HE W EIE « ile MFER
and prepayments FIEIE AN (210) (1,004)
Increase in amount due from a related JFE I — eI A Bt 2 =) SR IEE 0
company = (1,941)
Increase in other payables and accruals — E {th fE < JU0E [ fE 51 0B
jai 5,612 14,756
Cash used in operations REEBABAZRSE (8,414) (75,022)
Income tax paid ERATEH (9) )
Net cash used in operating activities K&EBHAEARE T (8,423) (75,024)
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Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of property, plant and
equipment

Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash
received

Repayment of loan receivables

Acquisition of financial assets held for
trading

Cash proceeds from disposal of
financial assets held for trading

Interest received

Net cash generated from/(used in)
investing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year

Effects of foreign exchange rate
changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
year, comprising cash and bank
balances

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ T — "NF+-_A=+—HILFE

Note
Bt aE
REXKBEESRE
W% -~ B R
HERBAR - Bl
ReF5 34

FE W E FUE K
WRFHIEEEZSRMEE

HERFEECSRMEELZ
BEMSH0R
BEHAE

REXBEE(BR)RE
FE

FRZEAESRERRE  BF
RERBRITER

2016 2015
=k e
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHT FET
(33) (2,030)

43 =

= 22,783

(115) (172,016)
8,261 60,097

25 11

8,181 (91,155)
(242) (166,179)
204,278 370,735
(317) (278)
203,719 204,278
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70

ORGANISATION AND OPERATIONS

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 4 April 2001 under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of its
registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands. Its principal place of
business is located at Units 5611-12, The Center, 99 Queen’s
Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.

The shares of Company have been listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK") with
effect from 18 February 2002.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are
described in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STATNDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1 January 2016

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle

” Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A ISR M EE

AEREE
ARAR-EE—FMAMBRENE

HERERHAESHSTM I REEH
R BRAT] o TSR 2 Hik & Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands ° &= & &
KU REBFIREFREFRIIRS
IRAM5611-12F o

ARRIRMBE—_EEZ_F_A+N B
NEBBERZHMERAR ([ EBER
Frl)EREM -

RRBIZEZEBRIREER - AR
LRPESPN TZEK%%MHDEM%?&%W
FL 185l o

RMWERBMBRE
B E 2R )

(@) W@ RETEEBHBR

ZA([&#

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Disclosure Initiative

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements

Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint
Operations

The adoption of these amendments has no material
impact on the Group'’s consolidated financial statements.
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HER —R=ZFB—-RE—H—
H&EXM
BN EHREER ZE-ZFE-Z-NF
(B3TK) BEEREE
BEQHENE 1R 2B BEHE
EEGHENZ 16RE HENEREBHZAER
BEENEREZE AR
&
BASHENEDH2E BulBRRERE
i

BEIBREERE105 -

BENBREENE 2
SRERETERZ8
A

BRAR RS ES
FNFE2E

REER  BRGAAEL
fIsMER

WEARESRE 85
i3

RZFETH AR BSE R

RYBEERTE -



2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements |

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STATNDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to
the Group’s consolidated financial statements, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative'

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses'

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-
Based Payment Transactions?

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers?
Amendments to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Clarifications to HKFRS 15)2

HKFRS 16 Leases®

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
and HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture*

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
i The amendments were originally intended to be effective for

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The effective date
has now been deferred/removed. Early application of the
amendments of the amendments continues to be permitted.

Amendments to HKAS 7 — Disclosure Initiative
The amendments introduce an additional disclosure that

will enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.

e ISR R

31 December 2016 —E— X XF+=-A=+—H

RMBERBMBREER(FE
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(b) EEMEMRER IR

BT B RMBREER

AT eI BB M iR %
AT g AN SR B 7 4R A RIS 3R R AR
B8 - B E AR R M R A R N I
REER RN o

é SEAETRZET REE
BEEAE 252 BIRETERIELH

ET BEE

BANBEEER DR BERNTR S

F2R 2T PERiE?

RAENBREE] SRIE?

F9%

RAN RS E ZEA KR

F15%

BANBEEER REAHNE (BEREN

F15H 2B BREEAE155)2

RAENBREE] heg

F16%5

RANHEEE RAEREBENTRA

FI0RRBERGHER  BARZALERIAE

FBHRET B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STATNDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Recognition of
Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments relate to the recognition of deferred tax
assets and clarify some of the necessary considerations,
including how to account for deferred tax assets related
to debt instruments measured of fair value.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 — Classification and
Measurement of Share-Based Payment
Transactions

The amendments provide requirements on the accounting
for the effects of vesting and non-vesting conditions on
the measurement of cash-settled share-based payments;
share-based payment transactions with a net settlement
feature for withholding tax obligations; and a
modification to the terms and conditions of a share-
based payment that changes the classification of the
transaction from cash-settled to equity-settled.

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. Debt
instruments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows (the business model test) and that have
contractual terms that give rise to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding (the contractual cash flow
characteristics test) are generally measured at amortised
cost. Debt instruments that meet the contractual cash
flow characteristics test are measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income if the objective of
the entity’s business model is both to hold and collect the
contractual cash flows and to sell the financial assets.
Entities may make an irrevocable election at initial
recognition to measure equity instruments that are not
held for trading at fair value through other
comprehensive income. All other debt and equity
instruments are measured at fair value through profit or
loss.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STATNDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model
for all financial assets not measured at fair value through
profit or loss replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS
39 and new general hedge accounting requirements to
allow entities to better reflect their risk management
activities in financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities
from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated
at fair value through profit or loss, where the amount of
change in fair value attributable to change in credit risk
of the liability is recognised in other comprehensive
income unless that would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains the
requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities.

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue recognition
framework. The core principle of the framework is that
an entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer
of promised goods or services to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services.
HKFRS 15 supersedes existing revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11
Construction Contracts and related interpretations.
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74

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.
REPORTING STATNDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps approach
to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

Step 5: Recognise revenue when each performance

obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRS. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.

Amendments HKFRS 15 — Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications on
identification of performance obligations; application of
principal versus agent; licenses of intellectual property;
and transition requirements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RMBEBMBHREEL(E;

REPORTING STATNDARDS (“HKFRSs") IR ZERA ) &)

(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been (b) EEMEEKRERZHT &
issued but are not yet effective (Continued) BT EBMBREER (&)
HKFRS 16 — Leases BEENBHEEERE 165 —H

g

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede BBV BRELEAFE165FHERE
HKAS 17 “Leases “and related interpretations, introduces AREBRESETERNE 1757 H
a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to El REEZRE sl AR —F&MEA
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of S EEREN  WREABEARAE
more 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low HHBANRERAZHMEHERREE
value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to FEaE  BRIEABEEAEKEESR
recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to use EBERw - EEmME - BEFE
the underlying leased asset and a lease liability S ERISE 1657 - AR AERE
representing its obligation to make lease payments. RAJFEARBEHEEE B AH
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation of EEERAEFEREEE) RRERA
the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease liability, YNHEFBEZETAEERE -
and also classifies cash repayments of the lease liability Eit - AR EREEREEE
into a principal portion and an interest portion and WELHEaENS  TEHESR
presents them in the statement of cash flows. Also, the BRZREERDEANE LD KF
right-of-use asset and the lease liability are initially BED RIS RERRKNRY -
measured on a present value basis. The measurement Uboh - BEAEEERBEREY
includes non-cancellable lease payments and also includes FIRIRMBEEEAE - SFEBFETT
payments to be made in optional periods if the lessee is BEEHENR - TeEAHASRE
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend the WA THITHERIEECERENT
lease, or to exercise an option to terminate the lease. This FREREKEBEEZBRT B
accounting treatment is significantly different from the BEEMARNED 2NR - ke

lessee accounting for leases that are classified as RIEFEEABAGHEZEEZEDN
operating leases under the predecessor standard, HKAS Bl 2ZEEARBERENSES
17. FTERIE 17T RSB AKEREZHE

4% °

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 MmEFRASHEEMS  BAUB
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting BEEUFIFABEATEES
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor continues FPERAIFE 17 2 AT EER
to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases, o A HEABEBEHRES
and to account for those two types of leases differently. AKEHESMERE  WES

WEHEET TRz ST RE -
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.
REPORTING STATNDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale
or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to
be recognised when an entity sells or contributes assets
to its associate or joint venture. When the transaction
involves a business the gain or loss is recognised in full,
conversely when the transaction involves assets that do
not constitute a business the gain or loss is recognised
only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in
the joint venture or associate.

The Group is not yet in a position to state whether these
new pronouncements will result in substantial changes to
the Group’s accounting policies and consolidated
financial statements.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION 3.
(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”), Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“"HKASs"”) and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs"”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption

(i)

(ii)

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments, which are measured
at fair values as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Going concern basis

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Group has incurred a loss of HK$162,688,000
(2015: HK$1,281,436,000) and at the end of
reporting period, its current liabilities exceeded its
current assets by HK$177,727,000 (2015:
HK$171,525,000). In addition, as detailed below, if
the charge results in a conviction and the Petroleum
Contract is voidable, the Group may not be able to
exercise its rights under the Petroleum Contract.
These conditions indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and therefore, the Group may not be able
to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business.
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78

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (Continued)

(ii)

China Energy Development Holdings Limited ¢ Annaul Report 2016

Going concern basis (Continued)

As further explained in Note 32(b) to the
consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company was informed that Mr. Wang Guoju
was formally charged by prosecution authorities in
the PRC for undertaking illegal operations (the
“Charge”), possibly involving allegations about
improper conduct in obtaining the Petroleum
Contract with China National Petroleum
Corporation (“CNPC”) in relation to the drilling,
exploration, exploitation and production of oil and
natural gas in North Kashi Block, Tarim Basin in the
PRC. After taking into account of a legal opinion
obtained by the Group from its PRC legal advisers,
the directors of the Company consider that the
Charge has yet to reach the judgment stage as at
31 December 2016 and up to the current date, and
that the directors of the Company is not in the
position to assess its possible impact on the Group's
oil and gas operation and financial position.
According to the legal opinion from the Group’s
PRC legal advisers, the Group may not be able to
exercise its right under the Petroleum Contract if
Mr. Wang Guoju is found guilty for improper
conduct in obtaining the Petroleum Contract which
might render the contract voidable. However, the
directors consider that they have long-term and
regular working relationship with CNPC and up to
now, did not receive any notification from CNPC
declaring the Petroleum Contract voidable, and so
they expected that the Petroleum Contract will
continue to be valid and will be executed as
planned.
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (Continued)

(ii)

Going concern basis (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the directors are still
negotiating the Gas Sales Agreements (“GSA")
with CNPC and expect that the negotiation will
complete in the year 2017. The GSA with CNPC
covers a number of provisions, such as terms of the
GSA, quantity of volume commitments, gas quality,
price terms, delivery obligations and delivery point
etc. The key outstanding point which the Group
has yet to agree with CNPC is the unit price of gas.
The natural gas pricing reform which reformed
pricing mechanism on natural gas is a major
reference point for the Group to negotiate the
pricing terms with CNPC.

The Group has been carrying out exploration and
evaluation activities at the site and working with
professional parties to prepare the data and
information that are required for the Overall
Development Program (“ODP") for government
approval before full production could be started. As
at 31 December 2016, the approval of ODP from
National Development and Reform Commission has
not yet been obtained. The delay in finalising the
ODP is the major reason for the delay in
government approval. Based on current information
available to the directors, the directors expect that
the ODP should be ready by 2018. The
development and production period should start
immediately after obtaining relevant government
approval.
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80

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (Continued)

(ii)

China Energy Development Holdings Limited ¢ Annaul Report 2016

Going concern basis (Continued)

As an interim measures to strengthen the Group’s
cash flow before the signing of the GSA, a
preliminary natural gas sharing proposal was
discussed and agreed by the joint management
committee of Kashi project which comprised
representatives from CNPC and the Group on 18
February 2014 (“the Proposal”). Based on the
Proposal, the Group will receive the proposed
distribution of natural gas from pilot-production
which was extracted and delivered before 1 January
2014. A second natural gas sharing proposal was
discussed and agreed by the joint management
committee on 3 March 2015 (the “2nd Proposal”)
which covered the natural gas from pilot-
production which was extracted and delivered
during the year ended 31 December 2014. Up to
the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the Company has yet to sign another
proposal with CNPC which covers the natural gas
from pilot-production which was extracted and
delivered during the years ended 31 December
2016 and 2015. However, the unit price in the
preliminary sharing proposals is only a preliminary
unit price used for preliminary sharing. The final
unit price is still subject to change and could only
be confirmed after the formal GSA signed. Up to
the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the Group has not yet received the
proceeds as agreed in the preliminary sharing
proposals, and the directors has yet to fix the
payment schedule with CNPC.
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (Continued)

(ii)

Going concern basis (Continued)

The Group’s current liabilities as at 31 December
2016 are mainly attributable to exploration and
evaluation cost payables amounting to
HK$392,569,000 (2015: HK$421,119,000). The
directors of the Company confirm that these
contractors are aware of the fact that the Company
has yet to receive the proceeds from preliminary
gas sharing proposals, and that the Group will be
able to successfully persuade these contractors not
to insist repayment of the construction costs until
CNPC has settled the proceeds as agreed in the
preliminary gas sharing proposals. However, there
is no certainty that these contractors will not
demand repayment before the Company receive
the proceeds from CNPC.

In view of the net current liabilities position and the
Charge, the directors have carried out a detailed
review of the cash flow forecast of the Group
covering a period of not less than twelve months
from the end of the reporting period based on
certain underlying assumptions including (i) the
Petroleum Contract continues to be valid; (i) CNPC
will pay the proceeds as agreed in the preliminary
gas sharing proposals before 31 December 2017,
(iii) the Group will be able to successfully persuade
contractors not to insist repayment of the
construction cost payables before the Company
receives the proceeds from the preliminary gas
sharing proposals from CNPC; and (iv) the Group
will be able to raise adequate funding through
equity fund raising. Taking into account the above
assumptions, the directors of the Company
consider the Group will have sufficient working
capital to meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due within the twelve months from 31
December 2016.

3.

e ISR R

31 December 2016 —E—XF+-A=+—H

BB ()

(b) FIEEERBELLEEBRE)

(i) FEEEEEE)

AEBR -_ZT— X F+_A
—t+—HZARBABEFERRN
ENBHEIEER €85
392,569,000 T(—ZF —Hh
£ 1 421,119,000 7T) « XA
RIEEMR - ZISAEHNE
QB M ARBEKR AR =
ZEHERZFIA - MAKE R
BRIz EAEEN - £ A
MEEENRARVSRZ R
BT Z TS FRIER - TEES
BENREERA - A - BER
BREERERBETIERAAA
W ER A B S B 2 BT S FORRT

R
BIER °

ENRE B EFREA N R 7T
BN EERETIET
EERE - YAREEBHREH
KRBT NP+ =@ A HREM
REMEFBREITHFMAER
(VR AEWEEER : (VhA
HEEBR-_E—+F+=A
= +—RZAISZNRAR S
HEFRAFTHERIFIA (i)
I ER B A5 BE K T AR AR A EE P A
ARBWEIF A BREERAR
NP HZH R FABFIEA
TEFENREER: Riv
AEEBES BRALEEEE
EERHES - KEE LR
B AREESRAEEAEER
—E-RF+ZA=+—HL
TZEARNBERHEESR
& OmEHEMBERE -

hEHERRRIERERAT « —E—~FF}R 81

TR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B IS R MY R

31 December 2016 —Z— R F+-A=+—H

3.

82

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (Continued)

(ii)

Going concern basis (Continued)

As disclosed in Note 32(b) to the consolidated
financial statements, in compliance with the terms
attached to the injunction order, in order for the
Company to proceed with possible equity fund
raising, the Company will need to apply for leave of
the Cayman Court to consent to the possible equity
fund raising.

There is material uncertainty related to the
outcomes of the above events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and, therefore, the
Group may be unable to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business. Should the use of the going concern basis
in preparation of the consolidated financial
statements be determined to be not appropriate,
adjustments would have to be made to write down
the carrying amounts of the Group's assets to their
realisable value, to provide for any further liabilities
which might arise and to reclassify non-current
assets and non-current liabilities as current assets
and current liabilities, respectively. The effects of
these adjustments have not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.

() Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Business combination and basis of

consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Inter-company transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit
or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or
up to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of
the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair
value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity
interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, to measure the non-controlling interest that
represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which
case the costs are deducted from equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a) Business combination and basis of

consolidation (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement
period (a maximum of 12 months from the acquisition
date) about the fair value at the acquisition date. All
other subsequent adjustments to contingent
consideration classified as an asset or a liability are
recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interest and the non-controlling interest are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii)
the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would be
required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed
of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests
at initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s
share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Subsidiaries

(o)

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is
able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are present:
power over the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from the investee, and the ability to use its power
to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there
may be a change in any of these elements of control.

De-facto control exists in situations where the Company
has the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee without holding the majority of the voting
rights. In determining whether de-facto control exists the
Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances,
including:

o The size of the Company’s voting rights relative to
both the size and dispersion of other parties who
hold voting rights;

o Substantive potential voting rights held by the
Company and other parties who hold voting rights;

. Other contractual arrangements; and
° Historic patterns in voting attendance.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment loss. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividends received
and receivable.

Joint arrangements

The Group is a party to a joint arrangement where there
is a contractual arrangement that confers joint control
over the relevant activities of the arrangement to the
group and at least one other party. Joint control is
assessed under the same principles as control over
subsidiaries.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c) Joint arrangements (Continued)

The Group classifies its interests in joint arrangements as

either:

o Joint ventures: where the group has rights to only

the net assets of the joint arrangement; or

o Joint operations: where the group has both the
rights to assets and obligations for the liabilities of

the joint arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in joint

arrangements, the Group considers:

o The structure of the joint arrangement;

o The legal form of joint arrangements structured

through a separate vehicle;

o The contractual terms of the joint arrangement

agreement; and

o Any other facts and circumstances (including any

other contractual arrangements).

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint venture
above the fair value of the Group’s share of the

4., EARSTBE#

(9]

BRHE)

AL B TSIMENEABA T
o AEAT: WAREEERT
BB ARHEETE : %

. HEEY - WEEBA TN

BERNNAEBEERS -

AR A T BTN - AR
B

e ZHFRAEE A S — B
MR

s HBARHHEIANER &

s FMEMEERBR(BIEME
B A L) ©

EARNEERRAZREXNER

AEBRGMEBABANEE A
BERIABBRAFEEZZESH

86

identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
acquired is capitalised and included in the carrying
amount of the investment in joint venture. Where there
is objective evidence that the investment in a joint
venture has been impaired the carrying amount of the
investment is tested for impairment in the same way as
other non-financial assets.

The Group accounts for its interests joint operations by
recognising its share of assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses in accordance with its contractually conferred
rights and obligations.

The Company’s interests in joint ventures are stated at
cost less impairment losses, if any. Results of joint
ventures are accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividends received and receivable.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4. ERSTBE@®)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (d) M%¥ - BERR®E

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Other than gas properties, property, plant and equipment
are depreciated so as to write off their cost or valuation
net of expected residual value over their estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The useful lives, residual
value and depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period. The useful lives are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 3-6 years or over the term of
the lease; if shorter

4-8 years

6-8 years

Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the assets
estimated recoverable amounts.

Depreciation on gas properties is provided to write off
the cost of the gas properties using the units of
production method utilising the contingent resources or
reserve, as appropriate as the depletion base.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in
profit or loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are recognised at cost
on initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition,
exploration and evaluation assets are stated at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Costs directly
associated with an exploratory wells (drilling cost and
others) are capitalised pending a determination of
whether sufficient quantities of potentially economic gas
reserves have been discovered. If it is determined that
commercial discovery has not been achieved, these costs
are charged to profit or loss.

Expenditure incurred in the preliminary exploration stage
are written off as expense as incurred.

When the technical feasibility and commercial viability of
extracting natural resources become demonstrable,
relevant previously recognised exploration and evaluation
assets are reclassified as gas properties under property,
plant and equipment. These assets are assessed for
impairment before reclassification.

Impairment of exploration and evaluation
assets

The carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation
assets is reviewed when facts and circumstances suggest
that the carrying amount of an exploration and
evaluation assets may exceed its recoverable amount.
When one or more of the following events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable, the Group shall perform an impairment
test in accordance with HKAS 36.

o the period for which the Group has the right to
explore in the specific area has expired during the
period or will expire in the near future, and is not
expected to be renewed.

o substantive expenditure on further exploration for
and evaluation of natural resources in the specific
area is neither budgeted nor planned.
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(e)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Exploration and evaluation assets (Continued)

(f)

Impairment of exploration and evaluation
assets (Continued)

o exploration for and evaluation of natural resources
in the specific area have not led to the discovery of
commercially viable quantities of natural resources
and the Group has decided to discontinue such
activities in the specific area.

o sufficient data exist to indicate that, although a
development in the specific area is likely to
proceed, the carrying amount of the exploration
and evaluation asset is unlikely to be recovered in
full from successful development or by sale.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount.

Intangible assets
(i) Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at
the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. The interests in petroleum
production sharing contracts were amortised on
unit of production method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(f)
(ii)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Impairment

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet
available for use are tested for impairment annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that
they may be impaired. Intangible assets are tested
for impairment by comparing their carrying
amounts with their recoverable amounts (see the
accounting policies in respect of impairment of
assets (other than financial assets) below). If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as
assets at their fair value or, if lower, the present value of
the minimum lease payments. The corresponding lease
commitment is shown as a liability. Lease payments are
analysed between capital and interest. The interest
element is charged to profit or loss over the period of the
lease and is calculated so that it represents a constant
proportion of the lease liability. The capital element
reduces the balance owed to the lessor.

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised
as an integrated part of the total rental expense, over the
term of the lease.

Impairment of assets (other than financial
assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of the following assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

o property, plant and equipment under cost model;
and

. investments in subsidiaries.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Impairment of assets (other than financial

assets) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs to disposal and value in use) of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under
that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset, discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or cash
generating unit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Financial Instruments

(i)

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which
the asset was acquired. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair
value and all other financial assets are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets. Regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. A regular way purchase or sale is
a purchase or sale of a financial asset under a
contract whose terms require delivery of the asset
within the time frame established generally by
regulation or convention in the marketplace
concerned.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

These assets include financial assets held for trading
and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the
near term.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They arise principally through
the provision of goods and services to customers
(trade debtors), and also incorporate other types of
contractual monetary asset. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence that
financial asset is impaired. Financial asset is
impaired if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
has occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset and that event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include:

o significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

J granting concession to a debtor because of
debtor’s financial difficulty;

o it becoming probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.

For loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of financial asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When
any part of financial asset is determined as
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for the relevant financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
For loans and receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods when an increase in the asset’s recoverable
amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair
value and financial liabilities at amortised costs are
initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
payables, other payables and accruals, amount due
to a shareholder and the debt element of
convertible note issued by the Group are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method. The related interest
expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the amortisation process.

e ISR R

31 December 2016 —E—XF+-A=+—H

4. ERSTBE@®)

(i)

E@MITHEE)

(ii)

(iii)

ERMEEREE)
BEHKRERSEMS (&)

EEEME  BEARDHE
2N ERRERRIRE 1R P B2
AR REBRENER
el R EEEERERE
B R ZEREE N SHEBINERE
RRIE 2 BESHAA o

EHEE

AEERFELREZBENSG
He@AaEN B - mAFEE
REBERIIFZEREBEVTZ
NEERE - MIZ#EKA
AAEZERABENIRATE
EFFEX/BNGEMEENER
FEIGAA -

BEBERLS R @A
&

HEEKAIRcEBRAEER
MR - MR AFIAR
FEET B - BN —RBIRFIA
RAGERITHABRERRDN
B E D - HEAERN XA
REHRAGTE - 18R B 5
STME R HER o

EAHAGRRIER A RS
SHAE A B SRR AR - L E ek
BENBRETER -

TEHERRRIERERAT « —BE—AEEHR 95

p



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B IS R MY R

31 December 2016 —Z— R F+-A=+—H

4,

96

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(iv)

(i) Financial Instruments (Continued)

Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Group that contain
both the liability and conversion option
components are classified separately into their
respective items on initial recognition. Conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for
a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing
market interest of similar non-convertible debts.
The difference between the proceeds of the issue
of the convertible notes and the fair value assigned
to the liability component, representing the
conversion option for the holder to convert the
notes into equity, is included in equity (convertible
notes reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of
the convertible notes is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The equity
component, represented by the option to convert
the liability component into ordinary shares of the
Company, will remain in convertible notes reserve
until the embedded option is exercised (in which
case the balance stated in convertible notes reserve
will be transferred to share capital and share
premium). Where the option remains unexercised
at the expiry dates, the balance stated in
convertible notes reserve will be released to the
retained earnings. No gain or loss is recognised
upon conversion or expiration of the option.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Financial Instruments (Continued)

()

(v)

(vi)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income
or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are

recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

(vii) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in
relation to the financial asset expire or when the
financial asset has been transferred and the transfer
meets the criteria for derecognition in accordance
with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
deposits held at call with banks, and other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group'’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of
cash flows.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to
the expected manner in which the carrying amount of
the asset or liability, is realised or settled and that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are
also recognised directly in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)

(m)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which will
probably result in an outflow of economic benefits that
can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by the group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operate (the
“functional currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling
when the transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary
assets and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at
the end of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income, in which case, the
exchange differences are also recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Foreign currencies (Continued)

(n)

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case,
the rates approximating to those ruling when the
transactions took place are used. All assets and liabilities
of foreign operations are translated at the rate ruling at
the end of reporting period. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
Exchange differences recognised in profit or loss of group
entities’ separate financial statements on the translation
of long-term monetary items forming part of the Group'’s
net investment in the foreign operation concerned are
reclassified to other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the foreign exchange
reserve relating to that operation up to the date of
disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the
profit or loss on disposal.

Employee benefits
(i) Short term empolyee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that are
expected to be settled wholly before twelve months
after the end of the annual reporting period in
which the employees render the related service.
Short term employee benefits are recognised in the
year when the employees render the related
service.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(n) Employee benefits (Continued)

(o)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Employment Ordinance long service
payments

Certain employees of the Group have completed
the required number of years of service under the
Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong (the
“Employment Ordinance”) to be eligible for long
service payments upon termination of their
employment. The Group is only liable to make such
payments where the termination meets the
required circumstances specified in the Employment
Ordinance.

Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
when the services are rendered by the employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as follows:

(i)

(ii)

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership, which is
at the time of delivery and title is passed to
customer.

Interest income is recognised on a time-apportioned
basis, taking into account the principal amounts
outstanding and the interest rates applicable.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(p) Related parties

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

0

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company's parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

0

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p) Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

In addition to information disclosed elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, other key sources of
estimates uncertainty that have a significant risk of resulting a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are as follows.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

0]

(i)

Impairment of loans and receivables

The Group makes impairment provision for loans and
receivables based on an assessment of the recoverability
of the balance. Provisions are applied to loans and
receivables where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balance may not be collectible. The
identification of impaired loans and receivables requires
the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of loans and
receivables and provision for impaired loans and
receivables in the year in which such estimate has been
changed. If the financial condition of the debtors were to
deteriorate, impairment loss may be required.

Estimation of oil and gas resources and/or
reserves

Engineering estimates of the Group’s oil and gas reserves
and resources as inherently imprecise and represent only
approximate amounts because of the subjective
judgements involved in developing such information.
There are authoritative guidelines regarding the
engineering criteria that have to be met before estimated
oil and gas reserves can be designated as “proved”.
Proved reserves estimates will be updated at least
annually and take into account recent production and
technical information about each field. In addition, as
prices and cost levels change from year to year, the
estimate of proved reserves also changes. The change will
be considered as a change in estimation for accounting
purposes and is reflected on a prospective basis in related
depreciation rates.

Despite the inherent imprecision in these engineering
estimates, these estimates are used in determining
depreciation expense, impairment expense and future
dismantlement costs. Depreciation rates are determined
based on estimated proved reserve quantities (the
denominator) and capitalised costs of producing
properties (the numerator). Producing properties’
capitalised costs are amortised based on the unit-of-
production method.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 5,
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

HAESTHE R THEBR
EZ2EFERF®)

(iii) Recognition of deferred income tax (iii) BRELEREH

According to the accounting policy as stated in Note 4(k)
to the consolidated financial statements, deferred income
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can
be utilised, and it is measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
assets are realised. In determining the deferred income
tax assets to be recognised, management is required to
estimate the future applicable tax rate for each subsidiary
of the Company at each tax jurisdiction and the
profitability of each subsidiary, so as to estimate the
future utilisation of tax losses. Any difference between
these estimates and the actual outcome will impact the
Group's result in the period in which the actual outcome
is determined.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(iv) Revenue

Pursuant to the Petroleum Contract disclosed in Note 17
to the consolidated financial statements, China Era
Energy Power Investment (Hong Kong) Limited (“China
Era”) is entitled to gas generated from the Akemomu
Gas Field during the exploration period in accordance to
the entitlement method stated on the Petroleum
Contract. During the year ended 31 December 2016,
180,930,000 (2015: 142,820,000) cubic meters of gas
was produced by the jointly controlled operation.
According to the Petroleum Contract, all gas produced
from the Akemomu Gas Field should be sold to CNPC,
unless otherwise agreed and a GSA should be entered
into by CNPC and China Era to specify the unit price
charged by CNPC to the jointly controlled operation. As
at 31 December 2016, the GSA has not yet been signed
between the Group and CNPC. In the absence of the
GSA, the Group considered that there is material
uncertainty of the unit price and hence relevant gas
revenue could not be estimated reliably and no revenue
can be recognised during the year. Based on the current
information available to the directors, the directors
expected that the GSA could be finalised in the year of
2017. As disclosed in Note 3(b)(ii) to the consolidated
financial statements, the unit price in the preliminary
sharing proposals is only a preliminary unit price used for
preliminary sharing, and the final unit price are still
subject to change and would only be confirmed after the
formal GSA signed. Therefore, the relevant revenue could
not be estimated reliably and no revenue can be
recognised during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(v) Impairment on exploration and evaluation
assets and intangible assets

The Group tests the exploration and evaluation assets
and intangible assets for impairment according to
accounting policies stated in Notes 4(e) and 4(f) to the
consolidated financial statements. The assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the
assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount of an asset or a cash generating unit is
determined based on value-in-use calculations which
require the use of assumptions and estimates. While
conducting an impairment review of the assets, the
Group makes certain judgement in making assumptions
including the future gas prices and production costs,
changes in these estimates may result in significant
variance to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. As disclosed in Note 3(b)(ii) to the consolidated
financial statements, the unit price to be shared is not yet
determined and will be confirmed upon signing the
formal GSA. In estimating the value in use of exploration
and evaluation assets and intangible assets, the Group
has made reference to prevailing gas prices in the
relevant markets. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying
amount of exploration and evaluation assets and
intangible assets was approximately HK$380,420,000
and HK$1,571,240,000 respectively (2015: approximately
HK$433,832,000 and HK$1,792,785,000 respectively).
Impairment losses on exploration and evaluation assets
and intangible assets of approximately HK$24,000,000
and HK$100,000,000 (2015: approximately
HK$256,000,000 and HK$1,057,000,000 respectively)
were recognised during the year ended 31 December
2016 respectively.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(vi) Validity of the Petroleum Contract

As described in Note 32(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, the directors of the Company was informed
that Mr. Wang Guoju was formally charged by
prosecution authorities in the PRC for undertaking illegal
operations, possibly involving allegations about improper
conduct in obtaining the Petroleum Contract with CNPC
in relation to the drilling, exploration and production of
oil and natural gas in North Kashi Block, Tarim Basin in
the PRC. Refer to the legal opinion obtained by the
Company from its legal advisors, the Group may not be
able to exercise its right under the Petroleum Contract if
Mr. Wang Guoju is found guilty for improper conduct in
obtaining the Petroleum Contract which might render
the contract voidable. However, the directors consider
that they have long-term and regular working
relationship with CNPC and up to now, did not receive
any notification from CNPC declaring the Petroleum
Contract is voidable, and so they expected that the
Petroleum Contract will continue to be valid and will be
executed as planned. Where the actual outcome of the
Charge is different with the directors’ expectation and
with significant adverse change, it will have significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements, in
particular the Group'’s intangible assets, exploration and
evaluation assets and deferred tax assets.

(vii) Going concern

The directors of the Company have prepared the
consolidated financial statements on the assumption that
the Group will be able to operate as a going concern in
the foreseeable future, which is a critical judgement that
has the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements. The assessment
of the going concern assumption involves making a
judgement by the directors, about the future outcome of
events or conditions which are inherently uncertain. The
directors consider that, after taking into account of all
major events or conditions, which may give rise to
business risks, that individually or collectively may cast
significant doubt upon the going concern assumption as
set out in Note 3(b)(ii) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has the capability to continue as a
going concern.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
internal reports that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision-maker in order to allocate resources to the
segment and to assess its performance. In accordance with the
Group’s internal organisation and reporting structure, the
operating segments are based on nature of business.

The Group has the following three reportable segments:

The Exploration and Production segment is engaged in the
exploration, development, production and sales of natural gas.

The Sales of Food and Beverages Business segment is engaged
in the sales of food and beverages.

The Money Lending Business segment is engaged in provision
of loans to third parties.
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.
(Continued)

The segment information provided to the directors of the
Company for the reportable segments for the years ended 31

December 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

(a) Information about reportable segment

W=k odBER &)

Bl

BE-_ZT2—R"FEk-_ZF—RAF+=A
—t—HIEFE  guUR2fonESse
RIS EIERINT

() EEATE2H DAY - BRH

revenue, profit or loss and other EBENERREMER
information
Sales of
Exploration Food and Money
and Beverages Lending
Production Business Business Total
HERRK
BAREE e EL S BEXE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
For the year ended BE-B-~F
31 December 2016 +=R=+-RLtEE
Revenue from external customers ~ SNBE Uz - 14 1,103 1,117
Reportable segment (loss)/profit AT 2BH I (EIE) /A (140,456) (914) 1,090 (140,280)
Other segment information: HiDEER
Impairment of intangible assets ‘| EERE (100,000) - - (100,000)
Impairment of exploration and WRERFEEERE
evaluation assets (24,000) - - (24,000)
Interest income FBUA 3 - - 3
Interest expense FEf% (700) - - (700)
Depreciation of property, nE - BERSETE
plant and equipment (503) (246) - (749)
Income tax credits FrEHigs 2,801 = = 2,801
Deferred tax assets ERFRBEE 86,373 = = 86,373
Additions to non-current assets ERBEERE 33 - - 33
Reportable segment assets E2RHPEE 2,045,126 15,578 26,235 2,086,939
Reportable segment liabilities nNERsBas (429,252) (3) = (429,255)
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WEKIEER 2

(Continued)

(a) Information about reportable segment () EETEHoBWE - BFR
revenue, profit or loss and other EBENENREMER (&)
information (Continued)

Sales of
Exploration Food and Money
and Beverages Lending
Production Business Business Total
HERM
WREREE B Ut Bar
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET FHET FAET
For the year ended HE-ZT—1F
31 December 2015 +ZA=+—HLFE
Revenue from external customers  SME F Uz - 5399 2,000 7,399
Reportable segment loss BEEGE 7 (1,323,202) (3,857) (53) (1,327,112)
Other segment information: EpEEH -
Impairment of intangible assets EREERE (1,057,000) = = (1,057,000)
Impairment of exploration and BRREEERE
evaluation assets (256,000) - - (256,000)
Interest income FIEMA 6 = - 6
Depreciation of property, plantand  #1% - BE LR ETE
equipment (536) (143) - (679)
Income tax credits FiEHER 2,483 = = 2,483
Deferred tax assets EREHIEEE 89,79 = = 89,796
Additions to non-current assets ERBEERE 67 1,963 = 2,030
Reportable segment assets ARENHEE 2,361,683 15,016 46,803 2,423,502
Reportable segment liabilities AZHRHHEE (449,660) (9,116) - (458,776)
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6.

Loss before income tax

Reportable segment loss before
income tax
Other income

Fair value loss of financial assets held for

trading

Finance costs

Gain on reversal of impairment of loan
receivable

Gain on cancellation of
convertible notes

Unallocated head office and corporate
expenses

Loss before income tax

Assets

Reportable segment assets

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Financial assets held for trading

Cash and bank balances

Total assets

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WamkohER 2
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment (b) TEHFrWBRANEE  BEE
profit or loss, assets and liabilities REBEZHIER

2016 2015
—E-RE B TS
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

BRETSBIAIE R

] £ ¥R 2R BR PR 1S B Bl 5 18
(140,280) (1,327,112)

E U A 22 4,008
HIEEEZaRMEE
2NV EEEE (1,434) (44,648)
EhE AR (5,805) (9,209)
EWEFRERR 2 ks
= 22,783
FEIRBRRE 2 W
- 92,459
RAOBEIER KA FIFRX
(17,992) (22,200)
BRETISTLATE 1B (165,489) (1,283,919)
2016 2015
= —ThF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FEr
BE
AE2E{RSHEE 2,086,939 2,423,502
HAbEUGRIA - ke KA
B 1,885 1,610
HIEEEZ2MEE 58,862 68,442
MR MRITHER 189,357 162,766
BEE 2,337,043 2,656,320
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment
profit or loss, assets and liabilities

(o)

(Continued)

Liabilities

Reportable segment liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities
Convertible notes

Amount due to a shareholder
Other payables and accruals

Total liabilities

&

AEHsHaE
EERAAE
AR RIR

e — R BR R

BAE

Geographic information

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
revenue from external customers and non-current assets
other than deferred tax assets (“Specified non-current

assets”).

Hong Kong
(place of domicile)
PRC

Hip R REHER

e ISR R

31 December 2016 —E—XF+-A=+—H

3

p? RN

3/ *: 4
(42 )
\n= /

okk

i

Wz ) 7

i

B

(b) T2/ BRANEE - EE

REBEZHER#E)
2016 2015
—E—-XRE —ET—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FET
429,255 458,776
= 53
58,039 52,234
40,402 40,402
3,684 8,002
531,380 559,467

() HEEH

TREJAEBEBREINEEP
ZWaEFIERDEECELEHAE
ERN) (EEXRRBEE]) WD

#r o
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REIMBES 2 W EEFRBEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—EB-XE —T—HFE ZB-RE —T—hfF
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET TFET FET T#ET
B (FrifhEh)
1,117 7,399 1,711 1,970
s - - 1,953,345 2,228,899
1,117 7,399 1,955,056 2,230,869
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OTHER INCOME 7. Hftg A
2016 2015
ZE-RE —T—RfF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Bank interest income IRITR B WA 25 11
Exchange gain, net [E W am 55 782 4,394
Sundry income HIEA = 3
Written off of other payables and accruals Hl #5 5 & 1<t 5078 &2 e 5t 2018 - 4,000
807 8,408
FINANCE COSTS 8. EEMA
2016 2015
ZE-RE —T-AhfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Interest on convertible notes (Note 25) AR B R B (MI5E25) 5,805 9,209
Interest on other payables (Note 23(b)(ii)) ~ E b fEF FRIEF S (B 7E 23(b) i) 700 =
6,505 9,209
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. BRAEBAEE
2016 2015
—E-XF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHTT FEIT
Loss before income tax is arrived at after B ATE R ATE B % -
charging:
Auditor’s remuneration % EREN N & 990 960
Staff costs (including directors’ BETIXRA(BREEFHE)
remuneration)
— Wages and salaries and other benefits — T& M#& M HMEF 9,289 11,794
— Pension fund contributions — RIRFTEIE R 77 88
9,366 11,882
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10. INCOME TAX CREDITS 10. FTEBIIER
The amount of taxation in the consolidated statement of SAELEKRRERANHERR

comprehensive income represents:

2016 2015
ZE-RE —T—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current tax BVERTS 18
— tax for the year — NEERIE 9) 2)
Deferred tax RIETIE
— Origination and reversal of temporary — EafS = 2 2 FE 4 N O
difference (Note 19(a)) (MI7E19()) 2,810 2,485
Total income tax credits Fristil e B 5E 2,801 2,483
Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% (2015:16.5%) on BBEFE TR IR E A b5 E R R A
the estimated assessable profit for the year. PRC enterprise 2165% (=T — 1 :16.5%) B X5+
income tax is calculated at 25% (2015: 25%) on the estimated H o AR ERTSHR IREFE ARG ER
assessable profit for the year. TR MR E25% (ZF—HF : 25%)
FTHE o
The income tax credits for the year can be reconciled to the loss AREEMERE R EES 2EKER
before income tax in the consolidated statement of N2 BRI TR EERNT
comprehensive income as follows:
2016 2015
—E—XE —T—AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Loss before income tax BRETISELATE 1R (165,489) (1,283,919)
Effect of tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate & BHERIEE 165% (=F
of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) —RF :16.5%) ZBBETE (27,306) (211,847)
Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries FAEfh AR EREE 2 WE QR
operating in other jurisdiction N2 - (964) (888)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax ~ FERRFRUA Z IS E
purposes (133) (20,447)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for A7 I 2 2 Firg s/ &
tax purposes 25,022 229,337
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERZ RBARIBEE . RBEZ
recognised & 580 1,356
Income tax credits for the year FRMREHRER (2,801) (2,483)
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11. DIVIDEND 11. RE
No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 31 Bz Z—XR"F+-_A=+—BHIFE
December 2016 (2015: Nil), nor has any dividend been WEIRMN S ERERRE(ZE—RF :
proposed since the end of reporting period (2015: Nil). ) GIREEREINERREAIRE (=
T—hF: |-
12. LOSS PER SHARE 12. BREBE
(a) Basic (a) EXR
Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss FRRENEEB T RANATHEE AJE
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted {5 BB A F RN 31T T @A g
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the FEHEEE o
year.
2016 2015
= —F—1F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Loss attributable to owners of the NARHE AELEE
Company (162,688) (1,281,436)
Number Number
of shares of shares
RE RE
Weighted average number of ordinary £ 277 & @A INKE 15 2
shares in issue 9,505,344,000 9,505,344,000
HK Cents HK Cents
B Al
Basic loss per share BRENRERE (1.71) (13.48)
(b) Diluted (b) #8
Diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per share HE_Z—R"EEKZT—HF+=
for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 as the A=+—BLEEzEREEEE
potential ordinary shares on convertible notes are anti- HEGREAREEER - LTERY
dilutive. R EE 2B E L BRARE
HE o
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13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EZME
Directors’ emoluments is disclosed as follows: EE2MERENT ¢
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE2-_ZE—-—X~"HEt+=-A=+—H
IEFEE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits scheme 2016
fees in kind contributions Total
e 2HR —E-RE
EEZHd BYRE EBARGTEIMK Fok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Executive directors HITES
Chui Kwong Kau (i) ESER(G) - 210 9 219
Zhao Guogjiang hiclEakzq 1,351 - - 1,351
Non-executive directors FHTES
Gu Quan Rong = 120 - - 120
Wang Yongguang (i) KA (i) 90 - - 20
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Fu Wing Kwok (iii) AR B (i) 12 = = 12
Cheng Chun Ying (iv) HIRE (v) 112 = = 112
Lee Man Tai (iv) BV ZR(v) 112 - - 112
Zong Ketao R 120 - - 120
1,917 210 9 2,136
(i) Mr. Chui Kwong Kau retired on 30 June 2016. (i) EXREERZT—RNFA=+HRE-
(ii) Mr. Wang Yongguang re-designated and resigned as a non-executive (i) AXREERZZT-—R"F-—AZTHARARX
director on 25 January 2016 and 27 July 2016, respectively. RIFBITEFERR-_T-—R"FLA=-++tH
BHEFEITES -

(iii) Mr. Fu Wing Kwok retired on 26 January 2016.
(i) BEERER-_T—RFE-AZ+RBRE-
(iv) Mr. Cheng Chun Ying and Mr. Lee Man Tai appointed as independent
non-executive directors on 26 January 2016. vy BIRBEERZXREAERZZT—RF—A
THANBEEZEEABUIIERITES -
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13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 13. EEZzME @

Year ended 31 December 2015 HE-_ZT—AFE+-_A=1t—HItFE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme 2015
fees inkind  contributions Total
TG94 —T-RhF
£k ENFE  RIREHERT ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FET FET FET
Executive directors BITES
Chui Kwong Kau Bk - 455 18 473
Zhao Guogiang B 08 1,399 - - 1,399
Non-executive director *HTES
Gu Quan Rong BEE 120 = = 120
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Fu Wing Kwok (i) B () 180 = = 180
Sun Xiaoli (ii) BER (i) 83 = = 83
Wang Yongguang (i) S (i) 180 - - 180
Zong Ketao (iv) SREE (v) 57 - = 57
2,019 455 18 2,492
(i) Mr. Fu Wing Kwok retired on 26 January 2016. (i) BRELEEN-_E—NRE—A=+/,BEF-
(ii) Mr. Sun Xiaoli resigned on 16 June 2015. (ii) BRBLEEN—TE—AEAATAEEE-
(iii) Mr. Wang Yongguang re-designated as a non-executive director on 25 (iii) EXRREERZZE—ARE—A-+HABAT
January 2016. RIEWITES -
(iv) Mr. Zong Ketao appointed on 21 July 2015. (iv) FREEER_ZT—RAFLtA-+—HEZ
£ -
(v) Mr. Cheng Chun Ying and Mr. Lee Man Tai appointed as independent (v) IREEENEXREER-_TE—XRE—A
non-executive directors on 26 January 2016. ZHRNAEEERBIIENITES -
None of the directors waived or agreed to waive any BE_Z—FFt+-_A=+—HIFE

emoluments during the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015:
Nil). No emoluments were paid by the Company to the
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Company or as compensation for loss of office during the year
ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

BMEBEEENELRAZREEAMS(=F
—HFE) - BE_T-RFE+_A
=+ HLEEE  ARBAERNEZTZ
& AR 5| AR R B AE S INA R
THERME(CT—AF  #)-
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e ISR R

31 December 2016 —E— X XF+=-A=+—H

14. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 14. ABRESHMA L
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the EASBAUESFTMALES  —u
Group, one (2015: one) was director of the Company whose —E—RF: —f)ARNRBEE 2 HN
emolument is included in the disclosures in Note 13 above. The REXKIFEI3HE - HpU (22 —H
emoluments of the remaining four (2015: four) individuals who F W) AT (REAEESREEAR)
were senior management of the Group were as follows: ZHET

2016 2015
—E-RE —T-RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Wages and salaries and other benefits TE K& UAREAMBRT 3,468 3,385
Pension fund contributions RIS MR 36 32
3,504 3,417

Their emoluments were within the following bands BEZFHNIN T T EE
2016 2015
—E-RF —E-hfF
No. of No. of
employees employees
ESAEH ESAE
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 =% 1,000,000/5 7T 3 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 &L E 1,500,000 7T 1 -
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31 December 2016 —Z— R F+-A=+—H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - BERRE

Leasehold Furniture and Motor
improvements fixtures vehicles Total
HEYELEE SHHAREE RE Fok]
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2015 RZZT—hE—HA—H 744 640 4,680 6,064
Additions NE - 67 1,963 2,030
Exchange differences PE N =58 (36) (33) (227) (296)
At 31 December 2015 R-E—HF+_-A
== 708 674 6,416 7,798
Additions NE - 33 - 33
Exchange differences PE X Z=%8 (48) (47 (302) (397)
At 31 December 2016 MNZE—RF
+—-_A=+—H 660 660 6,114 7,434
Accumulated depreciation 2 E
At 1 January 2015 RZZE—HF—A—H 744 478 1,809 3,031
Charge for the year REEER - 50 629 679
Exchange differences PE =58 (36) (25) (103) (164)
At 31 December 2015 RZZT—AF
+=-A=+—H 708 503 2,335 3,546
Charge for the year rEEEHR - M 708 749
Exchange differences M5 =5 (48) (36) (173) (257)
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—RF
+=—A=+—H 660 508 2,870 4,038
Carrying amount BRMEE
At 31 December 2016 RZE—REF
+—-_A=+—H - 152 3,244 3,396
At 31 December 2015 R-E—RF
+—-A=+—H - 171 4,081 4,252
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16. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

Cost R
At 1 January m—H—H
Exchange differences =]
At 31 December W+=—A=+—~H
Accumulated impairment Z2:HRE
At 1 January R—H—H
Impairment loss BEEIE
Exchange differences ME =50
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H
Carrying amount BRMEE
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H

The exploration and evaluation assets represents costs directly
associated with exploratory wells (drilling cost and others) that
are capitalised and pending a determination of whether
sufficient quantities of potentially economic gas reserves have
been discovered.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, provision for
impairment loss of HK$24,000,000 (2015: HK$256,000,000)
was recognised in profit or loss as the carrying amount of the
related cash generating unit (“CGU") exceeds its recoverable
amount due to delay in the production schedules of Kashi
project as the approval of ODP has been delayed (Note 17).

e ISR R

31 December 2016 —E—XF+-A=+—H

16. BIRRFEEE

2016 2015

S P
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT FETE
689,832 724,908
(46,768) (35,076)
643,064 689,832
256,000 =
24,000 256,000
(17,356) =
262,644 256,000
380,420 433,832

HRRFEEERDRA 2 EREAX
RBEHRARAREM) - EFEANE - M
FECEACRATHHUENAEER
R R MR A SR 1

BHE-Z—AE+-RA=+—HILEE
AR RBERSEASM((REEELEN])
ZHRAERBHEANESRE - B EEER
524,000,000 t( — & — | F:
256,000,000 L) ERE=ER BA
mARES AR A R X - BEURMT
1B AERBRHIRER (HE17) °
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31 December 2016 —Z— R F+-A=+—H

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B &E

Cost %N
At 1 January n—H—H

Exchange differences b Z 5

At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE

At 1 January n—H—H

Impairment loss (note) B EE ()

Exchange differences ME =5

At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8H
Carrying amount BREE

At 31 December R+ZA=+—H

The intangible assets represent the interests in the Petroleum
Contract which were amortised on unit of production method.
Details of the contract as described as below:

On 22 December 2008, China Era entered into the Petroleum
Contract with CNPC in relation to the drilling, exploration,
exploitation and production of oil and/or natural gas in North
Kashi Block, Tarim Basin in the PRC. CNPC is a stated-owned
company established in the PRC.

Pursuant to the Petroleum Contract signed in December 2008,
China Era agreed to provide funds and apply its advanced
technology and managerial experience to cooperate with CNPC
for the development and production of crude oil and/or natural
gas in North Kashi Block on Tarim Basin in Xinjiang, the PRC.
The maximum term of the Petroleum Contract is 30 years from
1 June 2009, subject to extension.

Pursuant to Petroleum Contract, China Era shall bear all costs
required for the evaluation operations, and the development
costs shall be borne by CNPC and China Era in the proportions
of 51% and 49%, respectively. In addition, CNPC’s portion of
operating costs shall be advanced by China Era and recovered
from the production of crude oil.
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2016 2015

S P
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHT FHATE
2,849,785 2,994,689
(193,206) (144,904)
2,656,579 2,849,785
1,057,000 =
100,000 1,057,000
(71,661) =
1,085,339 1,057,000
1,571,240 1,792,785

BEERORGNED  EaHRE
VESREHE - A FHBHAWT

RZZEZENF+A=-+=H FHFER
BB AMEBRRY T ABAL  LARF
B AR MR EIRE R - BF - 5
BREEAME HAAR - PEAHE
B ARFR BRI HBEA R -

RER-_ZFZNFT_ARITZOHEE
% PEFRAEREES MERELE
R M E &R EPEAHEESE - A
A FR B 3 5B 4 BB K 22 1t IR 11 4b [ 48 e 3%
REERMBRFRAR - AMAH 2K
EFHAE _TTNFNA—BEF30
FoHRAI TR -

RIBABEL » PEFRARETGES
PR T B RA » BN ZE R R B A
SEEFRAFERDRNIES1% K49% 2t
BlEHE o pEoN - PR RS B TR & K
REDEARFBEFEREN - WEBEER
UL mE o
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Under the terms of the Petroleum Contract, the evaluation
costs, development costs and operating costs are to be
recovered according to a mechanism of cost recovery oil and
investment recovery oil. Remaining oil, after cost recovery, all
applicable taxes and royalty that might apply in the PRC, is
share oil, which is apportioned between 51% by CNPC and
49% by China Era.

In March 2015, the Group has issued formal application to
CNPC to apply for a two-year extension of the exploration
period of Kashi project beyond the original deadline of 31 May
2015, as the exploration efforts in the cooperation site has not
been completed. As of the date of approval of the consolidated
financial statements, the Group has not received formal notice
of extension from CNPC. The Group will continue to use its
best efforts to make progress on Kashi project and will seek
legal advice with the view to upholding its right if and when
appropriate.

The Group has been carrying out exploration and evaluation
activities at the site and working with professional parties to
prepare the data and information that are required for the ODP
for government approval before full production could be
started. As at 31 December 2016, the approval of ODP from
National Development and Reform Commission has not yet
been obtained. The delay in finalising the ODP is the major
reason for the delay in government approval.

Based on current information available to the directors, the
directors expected that the ODP should be ready by 2018. The
development and production period should start immediately
after obtaining relevant government approval.

Note:

Impairment loss of intangible assets in the amount of HK$100,000,000 was
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$1,057,000,000)
as the carrying amount of the CGU for the exploration and production segment
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of the CGU for the
exploration and production segment was HK$1,954,000,000 (2015:
HK$2,230,000,000) based on value in use calculation and by reference to the
valuation report produced by an independent valuer.

17.

e ISR R

31 December 2016 —E—XF+-A=+—H

BEEE®)

RIBAHEL - FPEAE « BN R
AR N ZBAR 8 AKX 7N [B1 UR K 35 & (0] 1O
BB ] o FEURBIAK AR ~ BhAk R B33 A 59
FrEEAMBERENBERG 2 AHM
T ANEHE  ATBEAHEERFESE
KD B 1551% K 49% o

R-Z—RF=F AKERTELBE
BIEARHIAT R HREEERAN
HREBRE2E 7K - Bt EEZ
HMEBRRIR-_TE—AFHEA=1—
REMMAP ARES  RERDELGME
HAERERMRERRE - BEHAELR
EUHHRABRLE  AKEDRARE
Bl h SR 2 (SR E AR E A - A&
B eFEEEMERRIRR ) HX
BER  FREREERHESFEEER
PAMEREELHE R o

AEB —HEMBHREERELTHES -
RIEMEEALTAENFICHRBRABAE
FEzHERER  UEBFEH - £
FEERREEEAE - N _ZT—~F+=A
=+—H K HAESERZERNHNEELEE
G2 AR R - WIEAUT A
BHRBEENERFH X ZERA -

REEZAMAFEN  EFHEHEEHF
BHRBN T — )\ FRIEERLE - A%
Kot BE B AS TR BRAS 7 B I L A 1R B8 BT
G

BT -

REBE-Z-—A"E+-A=1t—BHLLFE AHFER
SENHZRSELSBMN s FAEBABLAKESHE
i & 52 % f2 & E R {8 /&5 18 100,000,000 jo (= &
— A 4F :1,057,000,00077C) - BRRAEEDE 2R
SEABMN KBS A1,954,000,000 T (=F
—H 4 :2,230,000,00077C) - @ FEIHIREFAEE
SER2EBAEMNGERSET -
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31 December 2016 —Z— R F+-A=+—H

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The review on the reduction in the recoverable amount of the
CGU related to the exploration and production segment. The
impairment loss of HK$100,000,000 (2015:
HK$1,057,000,000) is resulted. The impairment loss was due
to delay in the production schedules of Kashi project as the
approval of ODP has been delayed. The Company’s
management expect that the development and production
period should start immediately after obtaining relevant
government approval on the ODP. As a result, it is necessary
and appropriate to revise the production forecast of Kashi
project for the remaining contract period.

The pre-tax discount rate used for value in use calculations is
21.7% (2015: 19.5%) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Set out below is the summary of assets, liabilities and results
for the year recognised in the consolidated financial statements
in relation to the Group'’s interest in the Petroleum Contract:

(a) Result for the year

As the project was still under the evaluation period and
commercial production had not yet commenced for the
year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, there is no
result recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

(b) Assets and liabilities

Property, plant and equipment

Exploration and evaluation assets BIEMFHHEE
Intangible assets mAE
Deferred tax assets BERTBEE
Current assets MBNEE
Current liabilities neasE

Net assets BEFE
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ME - BB NEE

7. BEEE®)

ReEASEMNIROSBERIONERSH
TEEREED T - R EERERIE
100,000,000 £( = & — A F:
1,057,000,000 7 7T) © JRIEEE TR
REVS B Z 2 830 - BBUIRIR
BAERMRIRER - ARREEETRE
HEREEERERBEMATHRIE
MBS R ZIFAR - Bt - B85TR
BTAENWBHRAEEZEEBINAEL
EREHE -

HE-_ZT—XAE+-_A=1+—HILFE
TEFERAEEMRANRAMEIERA
21.7% (ZZF—HF :19.5%) °

TXHINGEHMBRENFARRZE
= BEMEERE  ATEAKERA
HMERN 2 ESEREE

(a) XEERE

HRZBEERBE-_T—R"ER-
T-RFTA=+—HILFEMD
RRFHEREE WARRBABERE
B Bt A 2SR ERER

(b) EERAEE
2016 2015
—E—REF —ZT—RF
HK$000 HK$°000
FHT F#T
1,821 2,432
380,420 433,832
1,571,240 1,792,785
86,373 89,796
5,272 42,838
(429,252) (449,660)
1,615,874 1,912,023
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31 December 2016 —E— X XF+=-A=+—H

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 17. EFLEE @)
() Commitments (c) 7#&iE
2016 2015
—E-XE —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Capital commitments: B A
Contracted but not provided for in EETAERBE T3 B IR -
respect of:
— Exploration and evaluation — IR R AR
expenditures 131,677 141,254
A Y- A— =<
18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. N2 R 2=
/NS FA — T — ¢ = = —
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 i;gﬁ/\\/?_ii I;\ZZE +._H =t—RZ
December 2016 are as follows: RNBAREMT -
Country/place of
Form of business incorporation/ Country/place of Issued and fully Percentage
Name structure establishment operation Principal activities paid share capital of interests held
MR/ geax/ BRTR
DNEER ERAERIA RYER %  w¥ TEER HERE REREADL
Directly Indirectly
B# &
China Energy Resources Limited liability company Hong Kong Hong Kong Sales of food and ~ Ordinary share 100% =
Holdings Ltd beverages and HK$1
investment
holding
FEERIERER AR BRAT Bt BE HERMESRE TBRR1ET
BRIRERR
Totalbuild Investments Group  Limited liability company  Brithish Virgin Islands Hong Kong Investment holding  Ordinary share 100% -
(Hong Kong) Limited Us$1
HERERE(FR)ARAR BRAR RERLES B RERR LEkIET
China Era Energy Power Limited liability company Hong Kong PRC Oil and gas Ordinary share = 100%
Investment (Hong Kong) exploration HK$1
Limited
REFRERRE (BE) BRAF BE HE MR EER1AT
BRAT
Zhong Neng Finance Limited Limited liability company Hong Kong Hong Kong Money lending Ordinary share = 100%
HKS$1
P BERAR BRAR BE B & EER1AT
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the ZEWBRARRFEREERITEMES
end of the year. B o
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31 December 2016 —Z— R F+-A=+—H

19. DEFERRED TAXATION

(@) The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position are as

follows:

Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities arising from:

At 1 January 2015 RZE—RF—[—H
Movements for the year (Note 10)  £E/& & &) (Fff:X10)
Exchange differences ]

At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—AF+-A=1+—H
Disposal (Note 34(a)) & (P 34()

Movements for the year (Note 10)  £E/Z & &) (Fff:X10)
Exchange differences BE N EHE

At 31 December 2016 RZZE—X"E+-_A=+—A1

Note: Deferred tax assets represented deductible temporary difference in

relation to exploration and evaluation activities in the PRC and the
recoverability depends on the future profitability of the Kashi
project.

For the purpose of presentation in consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been offset. The following is the
analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

Deferred tax assets BERIBE =
Deferred tax liabilities B IBEE

19. EEB TR

REFEMBMRR KR ZELERIA(E
E)/ BEERBOMT

(a)

BIERIR (BE) RBEEES :

Exploration Accelerated

costs tax
(note) depreciation  Tax losses Total

BV R B A EBE
iE) nE BIAEE g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET BT BT AT
(91,836) 568 (515) (91,783)
(2,485) - - (2,485)
4,525 - - 4,525
(89,796) 568 (515) (89,743)
- (568) 515 (53)
(2,810) - - (2,810)
6,233 - - 6,233
(86,373) - - (86,373)

M EEREAERRENETEZ HF
R AT EE 2 RS FTHURZ 5] M)
W B EBUR TR (IR B 2 KRR BT E
o

IREEMBRARRERZBHN -
ETEEHBREERABES THE
o MBI E M REER IR

RO -
2016 2015
= —F—1F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FETT
(86,373) (89,796)
- 53
(86,373) (89,743)

126 china Energy Development Holdings Limited ¢ Annaul Report 2016



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements |

e ISR R

31 December 2016 —E—XF+-A=+—H

19. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 19. EEHIE (&)

(b) AERELEHREE

(b) Deferred tax assets not recognised

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of cumulative tax losses of approximate
HK$18,171,000 as at 31 December 2016 (2015:
HK$44,617,000) as it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction of the entity. The
tax losses will not expire under the current relevant tax
legislation.

10% PRC dividend withholding tax would be payable on
the distribution of undistributed profits of the Group’s
subsidiaries established in the PRC. As at 31 December
2016, no deferred tax liabilities have been recognised as
the Group’s PRC subsidiaries have no undistributed
profits (2015: Nil).

20. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

AREBITEGA T —RE+ A
—+tT—BEREFHEBIED
18,171,000/ 7w( = & — A F -
44,617,000 L) ERELERHIAE
E REARERZHEBEHEEE
BETKRAGEENSHAZERE Y
RRERTEF o BIFIBITAEBR
% MIEBBE TSRS -

AREB AR 10% B0 R A B SZ
2 P8R B 2 R o I ) A e B
BREEHIH - R-T—RF+=A
=t—B ARAKEZTEHE
AR EHRY KGN (—F—H
FE) MERRBRELEHIER

==
=]

o

20. BRERKFE

Loan and interest receivables
— money lending business (note a)
— others (note b)

Less: Provision for impairment of loan
receivables from others

2016 2015
—E—-XRE —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FHET
EREREF B

— EER (ita) 26,235 46,803
— H A (FizEDb) 37,100 37,100
63,335 83,903

B EUE M A T E R IBE RS
(37,100) (37,100)
26,235 46,803
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31 December 2016 —E—XF+-A=+—H

20. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Movement in the provision for impairment of loan receivables

20. EWWEFZRAE &)

EREFREREZENT

is as follows:

At 1 January n—A—H

Reversal of impairment of loan receivable FEUE FUREREE (Hi7Ec)
(note ¢)

At 31 December Rn+ZA=+—H

Note:

As at 31 December 2016, the loan receivable with principal amount of
HK$26,000,000 (2015: HK$46,000,000) and related interest receivable of
approximately HK$235,000 (2015: HK$803,000) was due from one
(2015: two) independent third party. The loan is interest-bearing at 3%
(2015: ranging from 12% to 18%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2016, loan and interest receivables in the amount of
approximately HK$26,235,000 is neither past due nor impaired, which
was fully settled in January 2017. As at 31 December 2015, loans
receivables with principal amounts of HK$40,000,000 were less than 1
month past due, which resulted in overdue interest receivables of
approximately HK$735,000 which was fully settled with relevant interest
receivables in February 2016. The remaining balance was neither past due
nor impaired.

Loan receivable from an independent third party, Sing Pao Media
Enterprises Limited (“Sing Pao”), which was unsecured, interest-bearing
at 1% per month and repayable within 1 year have been fully impaired
during the year ended 31 December 2011. The loan receivable from Sing
Pao is secured by a personal guarantee of a third party.

Sing Pao’s shares were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“SEHK") but were delisted on 18 August 2015 previously.
During the year ended 31 December 2015, a winding-up order was made
against Sing Pao and the Group has already submitted proof of debt form
to liquidator of Sing Pao on 7 January 2016. The Group is now actively
considering to take appropriate action to secure the Group’s position.

The reversal of impairment of loan receivable of HK$22,783,000 was loan
receivable from Birmingham International Holding Limited
("Birmingham”), a company listed on SEHK. The loan receivable from
Birmingham is unsecured. During the year ended 31 December 2015,
Birmingham settled the total amount of HK$22,783,000 to the Group,
which was recognised as gain on reversal of impairment of loan receivable
for the year ended 31 December 2015.
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2016 2015
—EB—-XRE —E—RF
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FEr
37,100 59,883

= (22,783)

37,100 37,100

R-ZE—XNE+_A=+—R0 A28 hH
26,000,000% 7T ( = Z — A £ : 46,000,000 %
T0) 2 FEWE R K% 492350008 T(— 2 —H
4 : 803,00058 ) 2 HH B EURF B TR — &
(ZZ—RFE MB)BUE=FHER - ZE
RIRFEFNEI%(ZE—HF: NTFNRRE
18%) 58 °

R-ZE—XFE+-_A=+—8 &8H5
26,235,000 7 7T, 2 & W B 51 K FI)LB, i o 48 B
TARRE S WER T —+F— A REEE -
R-E—AFE+-_A=+—8H A&8E5h
40,000,000 8 T2 B EREBAHATET—@E
A+ I A B IR B 49 735,000 8 7T+ H
RZZ—NFZ BEREREERF S —HE
HIER - R EARBENAKRE o

N —ZBLE =T RBEEEEERIF
(TR EFRABER BT AFNE1%5
B XEAR—FAEE  ZFACREBEE=
E——F+-_A=+—RHIFERERE
WK BRERH —BE =T NEAEREE
o

RBBROZ AR EBHERIAARRA(E
BB LW ARKR-_ZF-—RFN\A
TNABRE - BE-_T—HAF+=-A=1—
BILFE  RBEETERS  MAKET
ER-E-XRF-ALBRAKBRHNBRALR
REMEAE - AEERIEEGZ BRIVE
BITBAREAE B MM -

JE U B FORUE B @ 22,783,000 78 7T A FE U 1A
ARHRRIER AR AR ([AHAEB]) 2B
ZARINBE BB R LT - ERAEBAHER
AEEF REE-_Z-—AE+_-_A=1+—
BLEEE AHBSRAANEELE SRS
22,783,000 L - REBE=ZT—HF+=A
S+ —BIEFE  ZREEERREWRER
AR 2 s
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31 December 2016 —ZT— X F+_-_A=+—H

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR TRADING 21. HEEEZEREE
2016 2015
—EB—XE —ZT—RHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trading securities listed in Hong Kong, at R&E T2 E&E 5 -
fair value BATHEE 58,862 68,442
The fair value of financial assets held for trading are based on BEESEZERMEEZAFEIERE
their current bid price in an active market. PAERTIS 2 IRRIEZEE -
22. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 22. HihEWERTE - T RAENE
PREPAYMENTS b1 |
2016 2015
—E-XF —E—HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHETT FHET
Other receivables, deposits and EMEREIA - A1 & RIEFKRIA
prepayments 18,681 18,878
Refundable deposits — AREFT&—TER &4 ()
Mr. Wang Jian Guo (note) 20,725 20,725
39,406 39,603
Less: Provision for impairment: W ORERE
— Refundable deposit (note) — REET® () (20,725) (20,725)
— Other receivables and deposits — Hib B FIER RS (11,883) (11,883)
(32,608) (32,608)
6,798 6,995
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22.

23.
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OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Note:

On 24 September 2007, Mr. Wang Jian Guo, an independent third party and Joy
Even International Limited (“Joy Even”), a subsidiary of the Group, entered into
the agreement in relation to the proposed acquisition of the 51% equity interest
in each of the target companies, Bu Tuo County Wu Zhou Minerals Limited
Liability Company (i RMIEE AR & F /A F)) and Hui Li County Wan Feng
Mining Limited Liability Company (& 32 % & @ % % B R & £ 2 &) of an
aggregate consideration of RMB498 million (equivalent of HK$516 million) (the
“Acquisition Agreement”). Both companies are limited liability companies
established in the PRC. The principal activities of both companies are in the
development of mines in the PRC. A refundable deposit of HK$20,725,000 was
paid (equivalent to RMB20,000,000) to Mr. Wang Jian Guo upon signing of the
agreement. On 31 July 2008, the Company executed the Deed of termination
regarding the proposed acquisitions, whereby subject to the return of the
refundable deposit, both parties shall be released and discharged from their
respective obligations under the Acquisition Agreement. On 10 March 2011, Joy
Even issued a Writ of Summons against Mr Wang Jian Guo claiming the principal
and interest on the refundable deposits. On 18 June 2013, the Court of First
Instance adjudged that Mr. Wang Jian Guo shall pay to Joy Even the sum of
RMB22,723,287 or Hong Kong Dollar equivalent. The Group is now considering
actions to recover the said amount from Mr. Wang Jian Guo. As at 31 December
2016 and 2015, all of the refundable deposits were impaired and there is no
provision for impairment (2015: Nil) charged to profit or loss for the year.

TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS

(a) Trade payables
An ageing analysis of trade payables of the Group based

on invoice date as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 is as
follows:

Current to 3 months B8 =18 A8

Over 1 year —F A
Total trade payables FERTBR 58

22.

23.

HEwRE -
I8 (%)

A2 RAMNK

B

R-ZBZLFEAA-THA  TREAECBIE=
F)EFIEREERAR(TRIED (AEBZHER
AR B ((WBHRE]) AR EEEZRERE
ARMEGEANBEEREETATIREEEELREE
EREARAEEAZSI%RE  BREAARYE
498,000,000 7T ( #H % 74 516,000,000/ 7T ) » M A
R ABRPEKIZARAR  EBEBHARTE
FRES - AEEERFITBARRTER LA
A 3R [@ & £20,725,00008 T(H E R AR
20,000,0007T) e R=ZZZN\FLA=+—8 ' &2
AEVHARERWESEZRIERZE - Bt - BRE
AREET® - MR EERBBREZET - N
T——F=A+8 HERTRRLEHELERS
iR B AREEEZARENE - RZTE—=FX
A+NB BREEHRERBRALEBANRIBESLNE
BMARK22,723287 TR EBET - AEBEBREE
BERRTE  AMEEELERE FlsE - RZF
—NERZZE-RE+-A=1+—0 2R
SHEME  BEXWERARNEE 28BS INRIAERE
(ZT—HF &) -

FEBRA  HttEEN R ERE
HE/E]

(a) FEfHERRX
AEER-E-AFR-F-HF

TZA=T—HARBERHIIRZ
RN RRRARER DATIAT -

2016 2015
—E-XE —ZT—RF
HK$’'000 HK$°000
FT FT

— 2,889

- 2,889
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23. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 23. FE{fBEL: - HibEN S IE R FE

ACCRUALS (Continued) s ERIE ()
(b) Other payables and accruals (b) HttfENFEREIE
2016 2015
—E-ARF —T-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET

Current portion: BVEAEB Y -

Exploration and evaluation cost payables &/ & 5 4 FE 1~ B A (B 5T (i)

(note (i) 392,569 421,119

Other payables and accruals (note (i) E th &~ ZIE & FEETFIE

G EAD) 40,370 42,770
432,939 463,889

Note: M EE -

(i) Exploration and evaluation cost payables represents balances @) M A EBERME17FAE BN
payable to contractors engaged by the Group to perform R R S A A IS E N T AL BB S
exploration and evaluation works on the area designated in the BAHAMNETE Y BEETHETG
Petroleum Contract as disclosed in Note 17 to the consolidated T RERHE -
financial statements.

(i) Included above is other payables bearing fixed interest rates (i) LiIER BERETENEN F4%
ranging from 4% to 6% (2015: ranging from 5% to 6%) per Z6%(—E—FE: NF5%E6%)
annum amounted to HK$10,450,000 (2015: HK$5,310,000). HE T HEMENZIE 28 A

10,450,000 7T( = T — 7 F:
5,310,000/ 7T) °
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24,

25.

BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES 24, EHRAEE AN £ 2 48R
(a) Amount due from a related company (a) FEW—REE A RKIE
Maximum Maximum
balance As at balance
Asat  outstanding 31December  outstanding
31 December during 2015 and during the
2016 the year 1January 2016 prior year
R-E-1%
+=A=+-H
RZB-RE ERME R-E-AE L-EEMX
+-ZRA=+-8 EERsHH% -A-B @EERELH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAET FBL
Hon Po Investment Limited EEREBRARA - 9,137 9,137 9,137
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group HE_Z—R"F+-A=+—H8H1
entered into a sale and purchase agreement to dispose FE -AEEFTLEEHREAEE
the assets and liabilities of certain subsidiaries including ETHBEBRAACEERAGE(BRRE
the amount due from Hon Po Investment Limited. As at FEYWEEREBRARIGIE) - R
31 December 2015, the amount due from Hon Po T—RAF+-_A=+—8H ERKE
Investment Limited, of which directors of certain EREBERAARE(RARAT
subsidiaries of the Company have held beneficial interest, MBARESNEFHEREER)
was unsecured, interest free and are repayable on REER REREKREREE -
demand.
(b) Amount due to a shareholder (b) EfR—BREMRIE
The amount due to a shareholder is unsecured, interest Bt —BRERIBAREER 28
free and is repayable on demand. REEKIEE -
CONVERTIBLE NOTES 25. AR FEE

On 22 January 2009, the Company, Totalbuild Investments
Holdings Group Limited (the “Vendor”), Mr. Wang Guoju, as
guarantor and beneficial owner of the entire issued share
capital of the Vendor, China Era, as a guarantor for the Vendor,
entered into the agreement (the “Agreement”) in relation to
proposed acquisition of 100% equity interest in Totalbuild
Investments Group (Hong Kong) Limited (“Totalbuild
Investments”). Totalbuild Investments holds the entire issued
share capital of China Era which has entered into the Petroleum
Contract with CNPC as disclose in Note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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B ERERERAR(ES D) REHE
EEWERBEAZERARES 2D E
TRAZESEBAN)  FEER(EAR
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(BB)BRAR([HAIRE]) Z100% &
AEZmMEI e ([ ZmE]) - £aE
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FREFEGHEREI Y T AME L (0
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25. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

On 3 January 2011, all the conditions of the acquisition of the
first designated area of the Akemomu Gas Field (the “First
Designated Area”) and the entire issued share capital (the
“Acquisition”) of Totalbuild Investments and its subsidiaries
(the “Totalbuild Investments Group”) have been fulfilled.

As a result of completion of the Acquisition and the First
Designated Area, the Tranche 1 consideration in the sum of
HK$2,558,000,000 was paid by the Company with Tranche 1
convertible notes of HK$2,558,000,000 at the conversion price
of HK$0.168 each, to the Vendor including the shortfall
amount of HK$1,279,000,000 which was deposited with an
escrow agent pursuant to the Agreement. The sale loan
consideration payable by the Company in the sum of
HK$906,299,000 was satisfied by deducting the deposit in the
sum of HK$804,000,000 and with the balance of
HK$102,299,000 to be settled in cash or otherwise agreed.

According to the Agreement, the shortfall amount of
HK$1,279,000,000 convertible notes (“Shortfall Notes”)
should only be released to the Vendor upon the Company
having received a written certificate issued by the competent
evaluator confirming that the First Designated Area be
evaluated on the basis of unrisked economic evaluation on or
before 31 May 2015 (the “Relevant Period”). No such written
certificate was received by the Company on or before 31 May
2015. Under the terms of the Agreement, the Shortfall Notes
have been returned to the Company for cancellation. During
the year ended 31 December 2015, a gain of HK$92,459,000
was recognised in profit or loss, and approximately
HK$1,309,405,000 related to equity component of the
convertible notes have been transferred from convertible notes
reserve to accumulated losses as the result of the cancellation
of convertible notes.

In addition, according to the Agreement, the Group is not
entitled to the benefits and interests of the second designated
area in the Akemomu Gas Field. A separate shareholders’
approval will be required for the Acquisition of the second
designated area by issuing additional convertible notes of not
more than HK$7,442,000,000 subjected to the fulfillment of
certain conditions as stipulated in the Agreement within the
Relevant Period.

e ISR R

31 December 2016 —E—XF+-A=+—H

25. AR EE &)

RZT——F—A=H ' KERMRER
RAZE—EEwR((F-EELE])
AR EREMBAR ([HAKRESR
M) 22MEBTRA(TWEBSEE]) 2
P IR BZRK -

ARFERWIEEERE —fETEHE - A
NEIB IR TREHRB0.168 B TR E /2%
775 —#£2,558,000,00078 7T 2 Al IR =
B A5 —#E X & 2,558,000,000 7%
T(ERERBHEERNEERENE
%6 1,279,000,0007870) o AR A ER 2 85
&5 H AR {E 906,299,000 7T 2 % @I
1% & 804,000,000 Jt M (& 15 - i &8 &8
102,299,000/ T BILAIR & st 2 H A
ARER -

RIEZ e Z=%81,279,000,000/8 7T 2
R ER(ZEEEDETRAAF
EWBEREEMBEHEMEESRRE
—EEHWREER _E—RAFRA=+—
Bz ai ([ BRAERE ) BEERRKLE
FEAEETGE - AR c AREIRZ
E—RFRA=Zt+—HZA T EEE
EHEMBEE - REZBE 2GR =58
FEEERERAETE BAE_T—RF
+—A=1+—BIFE  ARAFHEEHEA
A% 22 45 T 7 18 25 B 3R U 25 92,459,000
B TBMREBRERZDBOMEE 2L
1,309,405,000 7% 7T B B A #2 iR Z= 45 1 1
EREREEE -

BEoN - IRIEZ I - N EE W BRI 5
EARRHAE _IETEHE 2 FImEER o R
ERRERZBEER T IHEGER
217 TR 3@ 7,442,000,000 78 T 2 AN A]
MR EEWES T E - EREUS
B RBLER - SAEE o
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25. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

The Tranche 1 zero coupon convertible notes with principal
amount of HK$2,558,000,000 with maturity in 30 years was
issued on 3 January 2011. The convertible notes do not bear
any interest and are freely transferable, provided that where
the convertible notes are intended to be transferred to a
connected person (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Group
(other than the associates of the note holder) such transfer
shall comply with the requirements under the Listing Rules and/
or requirements imposed by the SEHK, if any.

The noteholders may at any time during the 30 years from the
issue date convert the whole or part of the principal amount of
the convertible notes into new ordinary shares of the Company
at the conversion price of HK$0.168 per share, provided that (i)
no conversion rights attached to the convertible notes may be
exercised, to the extent that following such exercise, a holder
of the convertible notes and parties acting in concert with it,
taken together, will directly or indirectly, control or be
interested in 30% or more of the entire issued shares of the
Company (or in such percentage of the issued share capital of
the Company as may from time to time be specified in the
Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers as being the level
for triggering a mandatory general offer); and (ii) no holder of
the convertible notes shall exercise the conversion right
attached to the convertible notes held by such holders if
immediately after such conversion, the public float of the
shares fall below the minimum public float requirement
stipulated under Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules as required by
the SEHK. The conversion price of HK$0.168 per share is
subject to adjustment for consolidation, sub-division or re-
classification of shares, capital reduction, rights issues and
other events which have diluting effects on the issued share
capital of the Company.

The fair values of the liability component and the equity
component were determined at the issuance of the convertible
notes. The fair value of the liability component, included in the
non-current liabilities, was calculated using a market interest
rate of equivalent non-convertible notes. The effective interest
rate of the liabilities component is 11% and the interest
expenses will be charged to profit or loss over the loan periods.
The equity component of the convertible notes, representing
the difference of the fair value of the convertible notes and the
fair value of the liabilities component, was included in the
owner’s equity and denoted as convertible notes reserves.
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25. AR EE (&)

F-HZEBTRBREREASEA
2,558,000,000 7% 7T ° AR =ik 2 B HA
BAXTHH -_T——— A=H#:t
=t+FER - TRREBETFTERTERH
EE ENRREEREETEERE
AN AN TN AEBBEEA L (EE
R EMMBA) A BHEEEERE LTR
AlZHRER,/ BB AT (N
) e

SERFAAIRBETRYREF =1TFR
BERF IR BB B A2 0.168 8 7T 2 &R 3k 7B
DABMBREBRASBE LB/ ARBNE
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25. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

The movement of the principal amount, liability component

and equity component of the convertible notes are as follows:

e ISR R

31 December 2016 —E—XF+-A=+—H
25. ATRARERE &)

AR EEARESRE BESD MESHD

ZEEINT

Carrying amount

BREE
Liability Equity
component component
=it D
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FEIT
At 1 January 2015 R-_ZE—RHF—H—H 135,484 2,005,233
Interest expenses (Note 8) FEFZ (MFES) 9,209 =
Cancellation of convertible notes XLl eE (92,459) (1,309,405)
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RF+=-HA=1+—H 52,234 695,828
Interest expenses (Note 8) FERZ (MFES) 5,805 =
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF+HA=1+—H 58,039 695,828

Up to 31 December 2016, convertible notes with principal
amount of HK$599,330,000 have converted into ordinary
shares of the Company. No convertible notes have been
converted during the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015.

The convertible notes with outstanding principal amount of
HK$679,670,000 as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 have
maturity date falling 30 years from the date of issue on 3
January 2011.

HEE

BE-E—REt+-A=1+—8 K&HE
/599,330,000 7L 2 AT IR RIKE K
EZ’X’A\E%@HX ° @Z?:fzﬁ_/\i)i:%@
—RAF+-_A=1+—HIFE  WEAHE
A E IR 4 o

RZE—RNFERE—RF+—A=+—
B Al Xﬁ?@Z%E?&Z’Si%ﬁ%

679,670,000t * ME/HAR A7 (A
—E——F—AZH)EHR=T1TF-
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26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. A
2016 2015
ZE-AE —T-hfF
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
RAEE o g E Gl
HK$000 HK$'000
FBT FHET
Authorised: ETE -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each R TE{& 0.05 % 7T
2 BBk
At 1 January and 31 December R—F—HN
+-A=+—H~ 25,000,000,000 1,250,000 25,000,000,000 1,250,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each &R E(&0.058 7T
2 ERK
At 1 January and 31 December  R—H—H
k+=-A=+—-H 9,505,344,000 475,267  9,505,344,000 475,267

27.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Under the terms of the share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
adopted conditionally by the Company on 25 June 2013, the
directors of the Company may, at its discretion, grant options
to the directors, employees and consultants of the Company
and its subsidiaries to subscribe for shares of the Company.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their
associates are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
option granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the
price of the Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within 12 months period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

7. BRESTE

BRERARAR _-_ZE-—=FX"A-THH
Bl Rmz Bt a8 ([t 8%
o ARBEFAWBRARR AL EHE
NEIZEE - BB RERR L BRELR
BAREZBLD °

BREBEZAEARRABITAR T ZRITE
BEEZERBBSFANZSTEREE
1TER - AATRNEFREE TR Z
30% ° {Ef[EBBLt FRE-—FREZE
BHE VAR BRAE L ERIBREAE -

BYARRES  THRAHKEEZREL
HEMBBEALZBRENASZ LG
B IEMITE S 2 - AN EEE
FTZEAARETARG EBERELIEBL
FEMITE S A H MR AT 2 BRKE -
MBBARRREMEREBETRM
0.1% X 42 {8 8 #8 5,000,000 7 7T 2 f% 17
(BB EBARRRMDERTE) A
EEARBRRASESRELLE
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme at any time during the period commencing
immediately after the date on which the option is deemed to
be granted and accepted and expiring on a date to be notified
by the directors to each grantee which shall not be more than
10 years from the date on which the option is deemed to be
granted and accepted. According to the Scheme, there is no
provision requiring a minimum holding period before an option
may be exercised. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable
on acceptance on grant of an option under the Scheme.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the SEHK
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant of
the share options; (i) the average SEHK closing price of the
Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the grant; and (iii) the nominal value of
the Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

No shares options were granted and exercised during the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

27.
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RS E ()

EEBRERBIERERKEAZAE
ESRASARABREDHZ AR -
AR IR LA Bl 2 IR BERS 1T (R RE AR © %
AR B B R E R R 2
BAERTSEE 5 - RIBEZXTE - 176
BRENTEREFEH AT - REZ
ArEERAR B ZBEREMN B ZRBAR
BR1BTT -

BRETEESHEREE - ETEIN
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28. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF 28. RN R BRI T
FINANCIAL POSITION
2016 2015
—E—-XRE —E—hF
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
M5 FET FET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RB ARz 1,663,733 1,972,708
1,663,733 1,972,708
Current assets REEE
Financial assets held for trading BEBE 7 EREE 58,862 68,442
Other receivables, deposits and HibpEUh i E -~ 5148
prepayments KIER IR 1,882 1,609
Cash and bank balances He MIRTTE R 183,757 156,784
244,501 226,835
Current liabilities HREBEE
Other payables and accruals Hoth JE A5 ROE K FEET RO 3,682 8,000
Amount due to a shareholder FE—Z AR R R IE 40,402 40,402
44,084 48,402
Net current assets RENEEFE 200,417 178,433
Total assets less current liabilities EEAEBAB AR 1,864,150 2,151,141
Non-current liabilities FkRBER
Convertible notes A RRR E 58,039 52,234
58,039 52,234
Net assets EEFE 1,806,111 2,098,907
Equity e
Share capital H& 26 475,267 475,267
Reserves i 29 1,330,844 1,623,640
Total equity R 1,806,111 2,098,907
The financial statement was approved and authorised for issue sEeN _ET—+tHF=A=-+=B#E
by the board of directors on 23 March 2017. RIS ERE o
Zhao Guogiang Gu Quan Rong
it B R 2%
Director Director
EF o
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29. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

e ISR R

31 December 2016 —E— X XF+=-A=+—H

29. KX A#E

Contributed Share Convertible Accumulated
surplus premium  notes reserve losses Total
BRRARH BHRE TRREERE B4y #E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET T FET FHET FHET
(note (a) (note (b)) (note ()
(F5E (@) (Ffi3E (b)) (& ()
Balance at 1 January 2015 RZF-hF—A—H
pd 73 91,349 1,679,187 2,005,233 (695,433) 3,080,336
Loss and total comprehensive BERAFE2ENE
income for the year k) - - - (1,456,696) (1,456,696)
Cancellation of convertible notes 3T $4 ARG 2 4%
(Note 25) (HfsE25) - - (1,309,405) 1,309,405 -
Balance at 31 December 2015 R-Z—H1F
TZA=t—Rz#&H% 91,349 1,679,187 695,828 (842,724) 1,623,640
Loss and total comprehensive EBERAFEERR
income for the year Wihas - - - (292,796) (292,796)
Balance at 31 December 2016 NIT—RX
TZA=T—HZ&EH 91,349 1,679,187 695,828 (1,135,520 1,330,844
Note: MEE -
(a) The contributed surplus represents the difference between the nominal (a) BEHRARBIRE_ST_F—A++tA

value of the shares of the Company issued in exchange for the issued
share capital of the subsidiaries and the value of the underlying assets of
the subsidiaries pursuant to the Group Reorganisation on 17 January
2002.

(b) Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
account is distributable to the shareholders of the Company under certain
circumstances. It represents the excess of the nominal value of shares
issued by the Company.

(©) The convertible notes reserve represents the equity component of the
convertible notes issued (i.e. option to convert the note into share capital).

AEESHER  BARBHBARZE BT
B AT B AT 2 AR R AD 2 E B R KT 2 B)
ZHHEEEME 2 ZHE -

RIEFASHERREZRTE BRI EERE
ETERTADIKTARARBRE - B0 E
EBHARATERTROEEIER -

HEERRFEEREC BT IARZRZ #a
o (A LM RE SRR 2B RE) -
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30. COMMITMENTS

(a) Operating lease commitments

The Group leases certain of its staff quarters, offices and
warehouses under non-cancellable operating lease
arrangements with lease terms ranging from one to two
years. At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group had
total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

Within one year
In the second to fifth years, inclusive

(b) Capital commitments

Contracted but not provided for in
respect of:

— exploration and evaluation
expenditures

— capital contributions in a subsidiary

As detailed in Note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements, on 30 December 2016, the Group entered
into a sale and purchase agreement to acquire an indirect
controlling equity interest of a company which is
principally engaged in investment in natural gas pipeline
and trading of natural gas in Xinjiang for a total
consideration of RMB32 million. Certain condition
precedents have not been fulfilled and no payment has

been paid as at 31 December 2016.

30. H&iE
(a) KEHEHRIE

AEERBTHECEHE R
HMARTEI®S WMAERE
B HAfA—ZEZEMFLE - R=T
—RNEFEER-E—RAFt+-_A=1+—
H - NEBIRER TS FEHIEH
TR B LR E 2 A RENRE

Hemms
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FE
R—FR 3,541 3,423
F_FEERAF(RIEEEMT) 1,052 4,000
4,593 7,423
(b) EAEIE

2016 2015
—E—-XRE —ET—hF
HK$’000 HK$°000
F#ET FAEIT

BRIH BRI 7 EIEEME

— R AHE A

131,677 141,254
— HHBAREE 115,500 123,900

Al 5RIA ©
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31.

32.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which
are related parties of the Company, have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Save as those
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements,
the Group had the following material transactions with related
and connected parties which are not members of the Group:

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed
in Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

LITIGATION

(@ In January 2014, two independent parties (the
“Plaintiffs”) commenced a legal action against (a) two
substantial shareholders of the Company (the “First and
Second Defendants”) and (b) the Company, whereby
the Plaintiffs alleged that the First and Second Defendants
have agreed to transfer convertible notes of the Company
in the principal sum of HK$106,820,000 (“Disputed
CN") to the Plaintiffs, but the Company failed to
recognise the transfer and failed to issue shares in
accordance with the Plaintiffs’ conversion instruction. The
Plaintiffs sought for total damages of HK$106,820,000
and interests and related costs.

The Company filed defense on 12 March 2014 and
denied the claims made by the Plaintiffs. The
management of the Company made an assessment that
the litigation is unlikely to result in any material impact
on the financial position of the Company.

31.

32.
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32. LITIGATION (Continued) 32. sRad (&)

(b) Reference is made to the announcements (the (b) BUERAARAFAHAZZT—AF
“Announcements”) of Company dated 7 June 2015, 17 NA+tH - ZE—RAFXNATE
June 2015, 25 June 2015, 29 June 2015 and 18 August H-ZZE—RFAZ+HH =
2015 in relation to, inter alia, the commencement of a E-RFESA-tHABERZ-ZZE—T1
litigation in relation to the acquisition of 100% equity FNATNBZAHBIZER
interest in Totalbuild Investments Group (Hong Kong) ) NAEB(EPeE)F-Z
Limited (“Totalbuild Transaction”) in 2011 against the —— FINBEHAREER(FB)AE
vendor, Mr. Wang Guoju, UK Prolific Petroleum Group FRAEI100%E([HAIRZEE])
Company Limited (“UK Prolific”), Mr. Wang Hanning HHEF - TERIE %A - UK Prolific
and other parties (the “Defendants”). Petroleum Group Company Limited

([UK Prolific]) - FEZSLERE

AT+ ([#EA D RRAFA
As disclosed in the above mentioned announcements, BN EMAGRE  NRARIESM
the directors of the Company was informed that Mr. BIEEREHTBRBRRERERN
Wang Guoju was formally charged by prosecution HEF AL E R ([ZIER]) - Enp
authorities in the PRC for undertaking illegal operations AP RHERNESAEEEOBER
(the “Charge”), possibly involving allegations about B1A KERBRART) AUEE
improper conduct in obtaining the Petroleum Contract. ERERmERRZERITE 2 A2
After taking into account of legal advice as to the ERE RZZE—RAFNA+TLEH
remedies which should be sought by the Company to (HEHERR)  XARNRHASE
uphold its right, on 17 June 2015 (Cayman Islands time), ERERAEEEREF([FRR])
the Company commenced legal proceedings in the Grand WEeEELAIREIERERE AR (H
Court of the Cayman Islands (the “Litigation”) against BXGEHEEH) TRELAE
various parties including Totalbuild Investments Holdings (BHZHERA) ~ UK Prolific (B 75
Group Limited (the Vendor of Totalbuild Transaction), Mr. BB 7 E—H AR ZER 7 &EEA)
Wang Guoju (the guarantor of the Vendor), UK Prolific K F 2% 5 A4 (UK ProlificZ B A
(the allottee of Tranche | Convertible Notes as nominated RIEEIA) - B - KRB AARS
by the Vendor) and Mr. Wang Hanning (owner and K(HAEE) BREERSZEE
controller of UK Prolific), whereby the Company seeks, WHERR(THARBRE ) EXNE
inter alia, a declaration that the acquisition agreement in AR - BN R ST R R A
relation to Totalbuild Transaction (the “Totalbuild R R B R - A R E RO
Agreement”) is void or, alternatively, the Company is EE(REEE) Bagae(Eha
allowed to rescind the Totalbuild Agreement, and other FE)ZIEEHATEEBRE AR
remedies including damages, on the basis that, inter alia, M:@EFAFAMTIRELERAHRE
the Charge casts serious doubt over: (a) the warranties KB T 2 IRFB(RRAMRMBEZER
given by the Vendor and Mr. Wang Guoju in relation to BHSETHERS) : Rb)HEl
the Petroleum Contract upon which the Company relied a5 (B FE AN A 51 I A UK Prolific
in entering into the Totalbuild Transaction; and (b) the BHME—HRERE  BEE
validity of the Totalbuild Agreement by which the BHUK PolificR BB REBARR
Company issued Tranche | Convertible Notes to UK AIEfIMAE—F) A WIE -

Prolific, and as a consequence UK Prolific’s entitlement to
any shareholding in the Company.
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32. LITIGATION (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

On 23 June 2015 (Cayman Islands time), upon the
Company’s application, the Grand Court of the Cayman
Islands made an injunction order (the “Injunction
Order”) that until the determination of the Company’s
Writ of Summons relating to the Litigation or further
order of the Court (inter alia):

i. The Defendants must not (a) dispose of, transfer,
deal in, or diminish the value of, or (b) exercise any
rights or powers (including but not limited to voting
rights in general and/or extraordinary meetings) in
respect of, and/or (c) enter into any agreement to
effect the above, in relation to 1.86 billion issued
shares in the Company, being part of the
consideration for the Totalbuild Agreement; and

i.  The Defendants must not complete and/or procure
the conversion of the convertible notes
representing 13,366,190,476 underlying shares in
the Company, being part of the consideration for
the Totalbuild Agreement.

On 13 August 2015 (Cayman Islands time), upon the
Company’s undertaking not to allot, issue or deal with
additional shares or to make or grant offers, agreements
or options in relation to the issuance of any additional
shares or securities (including any derivative interests in
the shares) without leave of the Court until the
conclusion of the present trial relating to the Litigation or
further order, the Grand Court of the Cayman Islands
made an order that the Injunction Order be continued
until conclusion of the present trial relating to the
Litigation or further order, and the Company’s costs of
and occasioned by UK Prolific’'s Summons be paid by UK
Prolific on the standard basis.

As the Litigation has yet to reach the trial stage, the
directors of the Company are not in the position to assess
the possible impact on the Group’s oil and gas operation
and financial position.
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32. LITIGATION (Continued)

(b)  (Continued)

Taking into account the legal opinion, the directors of the
Company consider that the Petroleum Contract may be
voidable and the Group may not be able to exercise its
right under the Petroleum Contract if Mr. Wang Guoju is
charged improper conduct in obtaining the Petroleum
Contract which might render the contract voidable.

The directors of the Company will update shareholders
and the public on any material development of the
Litigation by way of announcement if and when
appropriate.

33. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 30 December 2016, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with amongst other parties, Karamay
Hengding Properties Co., Ltd. (R IFKEBEREEBR D A]) (as
vendor) and Mr. Zhang Xiucai (as a guarantor of the vendor),
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed to
acquire an indirect controlling equity interest in Karamay
Weirun Gas Co., Ltd. (72 f FF K B B R B R 2 Al) (the
“Target Company”), which is principally engaged in
investment in natural gas pipeline and trading of natural gas in
Xinjiang, for a total consideration of RMB32 million payable in
three installments of RMB10 million, RMB6 million and RMB16
million, subject to completion of restructuring, completion of
construction works and satisfaction of gas production of certain
guaranteed volume, respectively. The transaction is conditional
upon the satisfaction of a number of conditions precedent, one
of which is the reorganisation of group structure of the Target
Company. The Target Company is still in the process of
reorganisation and the acquisition transaction is not completed
up to the date of the approval of these consolidated financial
statements. Therefore, it is not practicable at this time to
provide initial accounting for the business combination and
other financial information of this company until the
completion of the acquisition.

32.

33.
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34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

(b)

SERBREME g

31 December 2016 —E—XF+-A=+—H ™

34. HEHB LR

On 24 June 2016, the Group entered into a sale and (a) RZZE—ARFAAAZ+MA K&
purchase agreement to dispose of certain subsidiaries at BiVEEH=S HEETHWEAR
a consideration of HK$50,000, the net liabilities of the Al KRB A50,000/87L MEHE
subsidiaries disposed at the date of disposal were as MEBARRNEEABMBEFEN
follows: N
Assets and liabilities disposed of at the date of disposal: REERHCHENEERARE
HK$'000
TFET
Other receivables, deposits and prepayment HEmEW s -« e RIERRIE 52
Amount due from a related company JE W — R RS R B RUR 9,137
Cash and bank balances B& MIRITHER 7
Trade payables 2 S ENFIE (2,889)
Other payables and accruals H fth FE AT 508 R FERTRUR (6,227)
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 19(a)) BIEFRIE A E (T 19(a)) (53)
Non-controlling interests AR (753)
Net liabilities disposed of: EHEBETE: (726)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEKB ARz M= 776
Consideration received

Cash inflow arising from disposal of
subsidiaries

Cash consideration
Cash and bank balances disposed of

BURE 50

(b) REHENBARZEER

HK$°000

FHET

HEeRE 50
BHEZRERIRITTHEH (7)
43
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35.

36.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's objectives when managing capital are:

o To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it continues to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;

o To support the Group's stability and growth; and

o To provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the
Group's risk management capability.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
attributable to owners of the Company only, comprising share
capital and reserves of HK$475,267,000 (2015:
HK$475,267,000) and HK$1,330,396,000 (2015:
HK$1,620,833,000) respectively as at 31 December 2016.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future capital
requirements of the Group and capital efficiency, prevailing
and projected profitability, projected operating cash flows,
projected capital expenditures and projected strategic
investment opportunities. The Group has not adopted any
formal dividend policy. Based on recommendations of the
directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share
buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption
of existing debt. For details of cash flow forecast carried out by
the directors, please refer to Note 3(b)(ii) “Going concern
basis”.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group
is also exposed to equity price risk arising from its equity
investments in other entities.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments in
the normal course of the Group’s business are credit risk,
liquidity risk, interest rate risk, currency risk and equity price
risk.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

These risks are limited by the Group’s financial management
policies and practices described below.

(a)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Except for loan
and interest receivables, the financial assets held for
trading and the other receivables and deposits that were
further explained in Notes 20, 21 and 22 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively, the Group
principal financial assets are bank balances placed with
reputable banks. Given their high credit standing,
management does not expect any credit risk exposure for
those bank balances. For credit exposures to customers,
Group management has policies in place to ensure that
sales are made to customers with an appropriate credit
history. For credit exposures associated with the
refundable deposits and loan receivables, Group
management had assessed the credit quality of the
debtors, taking into account their financial position, their
business developments and other factors. In addition, the
Group ensures that the amount of the loan is within the
limit set by the Group.

Liquidity risk

The Group has net current liabilities of approximately
HK$177,727,000 at 31 December 2016 (2015:
HK$171,525,000). The directors have carried out a
detailed review of the cash flow forecast of the Group for
the eighteen months ending 30 June 2018 (2015: 30
June 2017) and other measures taken by the
management as referred to in Notes 3(b)(ii) to the
consolidated financial statements, and consider that the
Group will have sufficient working capital to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due for the
twelve months from 31 December 2016.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The maturity dates of all financial liabilities are within one
year as at the end of each reporting period, except for
convertible notes as disclosed in Note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements which is interest free
with maturity date over one year. The contractual
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities equal their
carrying amounts as shown on the consolidated
statements of financial position as the impact of
discounting is not significant, except for convertible notes
with the principal undiscounted cash flows amount of
HK$679,670,000 (2015: HK$679,670,000) as at 31
December 2016, but stated at the carrying amount of
HK$58,039,000 (2015: HK$52,234,000) as at 31
December 2016 as disclosed in Note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements. These zero coupon
convertible notes have maturity date falling 30 years from
the date of issue on 3 January 2011.

Interest rate risk

Except for certain other payables that were further
explained in Note 23(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has no significant interest-bearing
financial liabilities, and the financial assets are bank
balances held with financial institutions. The Group’s
income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rate.

Currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s
exposure to market risk for changes in foreign currency
exchange rates relates primarily to certain bank balances
and other receivables in currencies other than the
functional currency of the group entity to which the
balances relate. The currency giving rise to this risk is
primarily Hong Kong Dollar.

36. IKEERERE &)

(b)

(9]

(d)
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(e)

At 31 December 2016, it is estimated that a 3%
strengthen/weakening of the Hong Kong dollars against
Renminbi would have decrease/increase loss before
income tax by HK$112,000 (2015: HK$187,000). This
sensitivity analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain constant.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity instruments classified as trading securities. All
of these investments are listed.

The Group's listed investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong. Decisions to buy and sell
trading securities are based on daily monitoring of the
performance of individual securities compared to that of
the Index and other industry indicators, as well as the
Group’s liquidity needs. The portfolio is diversified in
terms of industry distribution, in accordance with the
limits set by the Group.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risks at the end of
reporting period for those trading securities. If equity
price had been 5% higher, the loss for the year ended 31
December 2016 would have been decreased by
HK$2,457,000 (2015: HK$3,377,000). Had the relevant
equity price been 5% lower, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the loss.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 36. MEEREE#)

AR BB

(f) Fair value estimation (f)

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments carried at fair value by level of fair value
hierarchy:

Level T — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted price included
within Level 1 that are observable for the
assets or liabilities, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3— Inputs for the asset or liability that are not

based on observable market data (i.e.
unobservable inputs).

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group’s financial
assets held for trading as disclosed in Note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements are measured at fair
value, which is categorised as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and measured fair value based on
Level 1 fair value measurement hierarchy.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into/out of
fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
into or out of Level 3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements \'\

e ISR R

31 December 2016 ZZT— A "F+=-A=+—H ™
37. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 37. TRIEERERE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and AEFEERMEENBER-_ZE—RFER
liabilities as recognised at 31 December 2016 and 2015 may be —E-RFE+-_A=+—B®RZEA
categorised as follows: BRI DEMT :
2016 2015
AL —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Financial assets TREE
Financial assets at fair value through profit & A F(EBERIEZEF R
or loss L ERMEE 58,862 68,442
Loan and receivables (including cash and B FH & U GRIE (B1ER € KIRTT
bank balances) FEER) 234,704 265,683
Financial liabilities cRBE
Financial liabilities measured at amortised {2 X AN EZ S RE G
cost 531,380 559,414
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Five-Year Financial Summary

T FEBMERE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZ —T— X XF+_A=+—HILFE

Results

ES

Revenue

Loss before income tax

Income tax credits

Loss before non-controlling
interests

Non-controlling interests

Loss for the year

Assets and liabilities

BEERAE

Total assets
Total liabilities

Non-controlling interests

Attributable to owners of
the Company

B FIS B A &S 1R

FISHE R

RET IR E SR A EER

FEIE RS

AEERER

BEMRE

afERE

FEFER s

ZAUNCIL 2PN Y

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—E-RE —T—RHF —_T-NF —T—=-F —T——F
HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET T FHET FHET FHET
1,117 7,399 37,261 36,687 61,951
(165,489) (1,283,919)  (40,240)  (48,533)  (41,483)
2,801 2,483 3,586 4,314 5,138
(162,688) (1,281,436)  (36,654)  (44,219)  (36,345)
(162,688) (1,281,436)  (36,654)  (44,219)  (36,345)
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ZE—XRF —FT—hHF —T—OF —T—=F —_T——F
HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FHET FET FHEIT T
2,337,043 2,656,320 4,199,837 4,233,272 4,015,268
(531,380) (559,467) (654,718) (725,328) (578,521)
= (753) (753) (753) (753)
1,805,663 2,096,100 3,544,366 3,507,191 3,435,994
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